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APPEARANCES: 

BRYAN S. ANDERSON, ESQUIRE, appearing on behalf of 

Florida Power & Light Company. 

MICHAEL B. TWOMEY, ESQUIRE, appearing on behalf of 

AARP . 

JOHN W. McWHIRTER, JR., ESQUIRE, appearing on behalf 

3f Florida Industrial Power Users Group. 

JOSEPH A. McGLOTHLIN, ESQUIRE, Office of Public 

Zounsel, appearing on behalf of the citizens of the State of 

?lorida. 

RICHARD BELLAK, ESQUIRE, MICHAEL COOKE, GENERAL 

ZOUNSEL, and CAYCE HINTON, appearing on behalf of the Florida 

?ublic Service Commission Staff. 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioners, we are now on Item 

5. Let's give staff a moment to get set up here. 

Commissioners, on this item it's at our discretion on 

whether or not we want other parties to participate. So as 

everyone is getting in their seats and all, I just wanted to 

bring that to your attention. And, Commissioners, what is your 

pleasure on whether or not we have the parties participate? 

Commissioner Argenziano, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: You're asking me whether - -  

yes, I agree, they should participate. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano makes the 

notion that we allow parties to participate. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: (Inaudible. Microphone 

3ff. 1 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Second by Commissioner McMurrian. 

411 those in favor let it be known by the sign of aye. 

(Unanimous affirmative vote.) 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Show it done. 

Staff, you're recognized to introduce the issue, and 

;hen we'll hear from the parties. 

MR. BELLAJS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Item 5 concerns Florida Power and Light Company's 

letition for declaratory statement concerning Turkey Point 

Snits 6 and 7 of their nuclear plant. 
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The recommendation encompasses three issues. Issue 

1 is OPC's request for a hearing separate and in addition to 

the ability of the parties to address you here today. Staff 

recommends denial of the request for a separate hearing. 

Issue 2 concerns whether or not to grant or deny 

FPL's petition, and staff recommends that the petition for 

declaratory statement be granted. Issue 3 is whether the 

docket should be closed, and the staff recommends that the 

docket be closed. 

Subsequent to having filed the recommendation, the 

Florida Industrial Power Users Group, FIPUG, and AARP 

?etitioned to intervene and intervention was granted by 

2dministrative orders to both FIPUG and AARP. 

As you noted, the parties are here to address you and 

fou have the discretion to hear them. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioners, before we get into any of our 

zuestions or anything like that, we will just give the 

larties - -  just recognize them for five minutes so they can be 

ieard and then we will get into our questioning phase. 

Mr. McGlothlin, you are recognized. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: I will begin if you wish, sir, but I 

lhought perhaps that since this is FPL's petition that they 

night want to go first. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: I was going to recognize FPL 
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because FPL - -  as presented here, staff is recommending a 

position and FPL is supportive of staff's position unless I 

read something wrong. Did I read something wrong? 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: 1'11 be glad to go first, if you 

like 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Joe McGlothlin with the Office of 

Public Counsel 

Commissioners, by statute the legislature directed 

the Commission to provide two alternative ratemaking approaches 

to the treatment of monies expended for nuclear projects. With 

respect to preconstruction costs, the specific alternative 

nandated by the legislature was to allow the utility to 

3ssentially expense all such expenditures in a given year and 

to collect the entire amount through the capacity cost-recovery 

zlause. With respect to construction costs, the directive was 

-0 enable the utility to collect on a current basis only the 

zarrying costs of those expenditures until the date of 

zommercial service, and thereafter to allow the utility to roll 

;he revenue requirements associated with the then balance of 

:onstruction costs into base rates. 

As a preliminary matter, notice that both of these 

ilternatives are designed to provide incentives to the utility 

m d  to encourage investment in nuclear facilities, which means 

:hat even if you deny the petition today, the impact of that 
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will be to direct FPL to use the second of two utility favoring 

incentives. Both of these mechanisms are attractive to the 

utilities and are designed to encourage investment. 

The Commission implemented this statute by rule and 

its rule contemplates a continuum consisting of the selection 

3f a site, the finishing of site preparation, and thereafter 

zonstruction activities. And the question raised by FPL's 

2etition is this, what if a portion of an item that would 

2rdinarily be treated as construction costs is expended and 

incurred prior to the end of site clearing. 

FPL asserts that the date that the cost was incurred 

is the governing criteria, and that if a cost associated with 

uhat would ordinarily be a construction cost is incurred prior 

10 the completion of site clearing, then by operation of the 

rule it should be treated as preconstruction and FPL should be 

2llowed to collect 100 percent of that expenditure through the 

Zapacity cost-recovery clause, instead of only the carrying 

Zosts. For reasons we have delineated in our position 

statement, we believe that FPL's position is inconsistent with 

loth your rule and with logic, and represents overreaching at 

:he expense of customers. No pun intended. 

Preliminarily, I ask that the Commission look before 

TOU leap. As staff indicated, we asked for a hearing on this 

latter because we believe that the petition does not provide 

70u sufficient facts to establish the boundaries that would be 
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impacted by your decision. Quoting from FPL's petition, FPL 

refers to long lead procurement items which include, but are 

not necessarily limited to heavy forgings, like the reactor 

vessel, steam generator shell, et cetera. 

Commissioners, I think the Commission should be wary 

Df petitions for declaratory statements that include such 

language as not necessarily limited to and et cetera. The 

?etition itself is open-ended. While FPL does not quantify the 

impact on customers of granting its petition, in our pleading 

rJe have directed you to evidence in the determination of need 

zase which indicates that at that point FPL had identified some 

;lo0 million of long lead procurement items that by its 

?osition would qualify for this immediate 100 percent 

2ollection as opposed to the carrying cost treatment. 

Now, with respect to the point that the petition is 

:onsistent with your rule, the rule defines construction costs 

3 0  include, and I am quoting, "Power plant buildings and all 

issociated permanent structures, equipment, and systems," end 

luote 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. McGlothlin, are you close to 

Jinding up, because you are right at six minutes. Okay. Are 

'ou close to ending? 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Well, I was not aware of the 

'ive-minute deadline, but I'll try to -- 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman, could I ask you to please 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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be openminded and liberal with the clock on this matter? As we 

are all aware, you all just spent an hour and a half on a water 

related issue. This issue is of extreme importance in terms of 

precedential value you'll establish today, as well as the 

dollar amounts that might be impacted on the customers, so I 

would urge you to give a little bit more flexibility to not 

just Mr. McGlothlin and the Office of Public Counsel, but Mr. 

McWhirter, myself on behalf of AARP. And, of course, give the 

company as much time as they need to be on an even standing as 

us. I would request that of you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Well, I appreciate your request, 

but here is the way we're going to operate. I'm going to give 

2ach one of you five minutes, then that will give the 

Zommissioners the greater amount of time to ask questions, to 

go into our debate and all. I think that the issues that you 

2re raising are not so unique that they can't be explained 

vithin five minutes. 

Mr. McGlothlin. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Yes, sir. I'll speed along, if I 

nay. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: With respect to the points that the 

ietition is inconsistent with the rule, the rule defines 

:onstruction cost to include power plant buildings and 

;tructures, equipment, and systems. If FPL's position were 
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right in its petition, there would have been no need for 

including any such definitions. The rule would simply say at 

this point in time it's preconstruction, anything after that is 

construction. So, if you start with the proposition that each 

provision has a purpose, FPL is trying to read the purpose of 

that provision out of the rule. 

And in terms of inconsistent with logic, the rule 

defines site selection costs as costs that are expended prior 

to selection of a site. What if the forging advanced payments 

had predated the ultimate site selection? According to FPL, 

that would render the forging advanced payments site selection 

costs. An absurd result, but it depends on the statement logic 

on which FPL depends for its petition and its position. 

One point about the staff's recommendation. Staff 

notes that the definition of construction costs within the rule 

is not bounded by any time frame as is the definition of 

?reconstruction costs, but I would submit to you that the 

?roper inference to be drawn from that is that construction 

zosts remain construction costs regardless of whenever they are 

incurred. So I'm mindful of your admonition, Chairman, and I 

Mill close on that note. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Mr. McWhirter, you're recognized. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Chairman, I will tell you in 

jeneral the principal concerns we have and then perhaps it will 
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trigger a question that will give the elaboration that it 

requires. 

When you adopt this rule, you need to take into 

consideration the fact how the statute has evolved from 366.06, 

when that was enacted that guided what you do in ratemaking. 

It said you will give the utility a return on its assets which 

are in use and useful service. They are already operating and 

providing the benefits to customers. The evolution as we get 

down to 366.93 says you will give the utility projected costs 

of a planned unit that is not necessarily committed to be 

built, and it will be given to the utility 10 to 12 years 

before it is built. I won't elaborate further on that. 

At the time you adopted your rule, the legislature 

gave you six months to do it, and the then Chairman was pretty 

ticked off because we hadn't done it after eight months. And 

the reason we hadn't done it was because we were fussing about 

how you interpret that rule, and the staff was very careful in 

defining construction costs and other costs that would be 

considered. 

The difference is if you get construction costs you 

only get the carrying costs on the investment whereas if it's 

treated as a pre-site clearing construction cost that is to be 

identified then you get the total cost. So the problem, as I 

see it, is what you are doing is charging customers today a lot 

of money for the benefit of customers 10 to 12 years down the 
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pike. 

And the Commission has dealt with this before. You 

had a rule of fairness, and you concluded years ago that a 

utility, if it was taking fast write-off for tax purposes, it 

was unfair to future customers to let the current customers get 

the benefit of the fast tax write-off. So what happens was you 

came up with the concept of deferred taxes. 

FPL has collected $2.3 billion from current customers 

for the benefit of future customers. And what we're asking you 

to do is the corollary of that. We're asking you to consider 

the fact that under this legislation, this far-going 

legislation, you are going to impact current customers with 

zosts that are going to hurt future -- I mean, are going to 

nelp future customers. 

You aren't going to have factual hearings. You spent 

m hour and a half on this water and sewer matter for mom and 

?op water and sewer companies because you didn't have adequate 

facts. You said that you can look at the facts in the 

letition. Well, I would suggest to you, you ought to also look 

it the facts in the pending petition of 08148, which is the 

7lorida Progress power plant operation. It has a certificate 

If  need that's going to come up for hearing. It has filed 

:estimony, and I'm taking an extract from Mr. Portuondo's 

Cxhibit JP-2. He tells you what the impact of their operation 

.s going to be on customers in the Florida Progress area. And 
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in 2009, the estimated rate impact is going to be $272 million 

on customers. That will be $6.43 on a customer that uses 1,000 

kilowatt hours a month. But, of course, as you know, customers 

use more than that. And if you use more than 1,000 you have an 

inverted rate. And then on top of that you pay a 10 percent 

utility tax, and you pay a 4-1/2 percent franchise fee, and 

then the rate base is an automatic adjustment for ad valorem 

taxes, and then there is a markup for the income tax impact. 

So customers of Progress Energy ought to consider 

what this broad rule is going to do on all nuclear plant 

customers. And I would suggest to you that the additional 

revenue from nuclear plants may cure the budget problems that 

local governments have been complaining about because the 

electric customers are going to be picking up the bill. 

I would suggest to you that there is a lot more to 

talk about, and if you want to ask me some questions I will be 

nappy to answer them. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Did you complete your thoughts, Mr. 

“IWhirter? 

MR. McWHIRTER: No, sir, but I completed it within 

:he time frame you gave. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Well, I did say five minutes, but 

4r. McGlothlin went for eight. So, if you want to take those 

ither three -- 

MR. McWHIRTER: If I have triggered any thoughts that 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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might give you concern about the rate impact on customers, you 

feel free to ask me about them. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay, then. Mr. Twomey, you're 

recognized. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, Mr. Chair. And if you would 

not start the clock until Mr. McGlothlin passes my little 

handout. And I set the stage, us both being former Army guys, 

Yr. Chair, you're often used to - -  in that environment you hear 

sbout people getting up and doing dog and pony shows and all of 

that. Well, I'm here to tell you this is not going to be a dog 

2nd pony show. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. 

MR. TWOMEY: It's not a dog and pony. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Just a dog show, not the pony. We 

clouldn't afford the pony for this one? 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: This is supposed to be a 

:ow, but it's a steer. 

MR. McWHIRTER: You're not sure it's a bull? 

MR. TWOMEY: I'm not looking. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Maybe we need to get Commissioner 

3ronson to help us out on this one. Okay. 

Do all parties and staff have a copy of this handout 

:hat Mr. Twomey passed out? 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: One second. 
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MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Let me make sure that everybody -- 

MR. TWOMEY: I think I had enough for everybody. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: - -  Mr. Anderson gets one, as well. 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman, what I have asked Mr. 

McGlothlin to pass out is a copy of the statute we are 

concerned with here, a copy of the rule promulgated by the 

Commission recently that both Mr. McGlothlin and Mr. McWhirter 

mentioned, and an off the Internet summary description or a 

diagram of what is involved in a pressure water reactor. 

I'll be brief, of course. As the two gentlemen said 

before me, this whole business that we are looking at right now 

is a substantial departure from traditional ratemaking. I did 

the last nuclear power plant entry into rate base as this 

:omission's senior electric lawyer in 1984, I think it was, 

for FPL's St. Lucie 2 unit. They didn't get a penny of 

zost-recovery during the 10, 11, or 12 years that that plant 

nias under construction and it was under a good timeline and a 

3ood budget. They didn't get a penny. All the money that they 

nad interest charges, AFUDC were added on and went into the 

1.4, roughly, billion dollar cost of the plant when it went 

into rate base. 

The legislature recognized the importance, 

2pparently, of nuclear power plants being nonemitting sources 

m d  also having the ability to be base load units. They 
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recognized that they are extremely low-cost fuel, but 

relatively high capital costs, and they went about this 

legislation two years ago to allow for early cost-recovery, 

that is, a change from the traditional for these plants in the 

IGCC, but we will just talk about nuclear plants, the law 

enacted two years ago. 

As they said, the law required that you give certain 

preferred recovery for preconstruction costs, that is, all the 

money they spend comes out of the customers' pockets almost 

immediately, and then still preferential treatment for 

construction costs that allows the companies not the recovery 

of all the monies, but of a carrying charge or interest payment 

as they build up through the construction process equal to 

their AFUDC charge. So, rather than having a non-cash AFUDC 

charge under the traditional method, they get to charge the 

customers a return as they build. Both of those are good. 

You promulgated a rule, and it's extremely important, 

because you had to do it pursuant to the legislation. And so 

syThat you did was you fleshed out the statute, which is what 

rules are for. It is more specific than the statute. That is 

the proper thing to do. Now you are bound by the specificity 

2f your rule. And I want to make a couple of quick points 

nere. 

If you look at the rule, and you look at - -  I have 

nighlighted on your copies, I think, the definitions of 
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preconstruction costs, and I'm not going to read through them. 

But, if you look at it, those of us that were involved in the 

process of promulgating this rule and negotiating the language 

envisioned that to be not just a timeline, although clearly a 

timeline is involved from the start of the process to 

construction of the plant, or the final clearing and so forth 

of the plant site, but also by the nature of the expenses. The 

nature of the expenses 

In my petition to get in this case yesterday, and I 

2ppreciate the rapid grant, I likened the preconstruction costs 

to a cow. I likened the construction costs to a duck. If you 

look at the construction cost definition, Commissioners, and 

this extremely important in AARP's view, it says construction 

closts are costs that are expended to construct the nuclear 

?lant, including but not limited to the cost of constructing 

?ewer plant buildings and all associated permanent structures, 

squipment, and systems. 

If you look at the diagram I gave to you, and the 

larties, as well, on your copies I have highlighted the reactor 

Jessel. The reactor vessel is not just part of the power 

?lant, the nuclear power plant, it is at its very heart. 

Literally at the core of its operation. And, as Mr. McGlothlin 

iointed out, the company's petition is so open-ended that they 

lon't confine their request to this special treatment; that is, 

;hey are asking you to make my client's members and everybody 
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else that's a customer to pay all the money for these forgings, 

not just the return on it. They will get a return in any 

event, no matter what you do here. 

So, it's open-ended, as Mr. McGlothlin said, because 

the steam generator shell, that's in there inside the 

containment building. That's one of the things they have 

mentioned, but then they went ahead and said not limited to and 

et cetera, as he pointed out. Way open-ended, dangerous. 

Again, not just for the application of this company, Turkey 

Point 6 and 7, but we had the Levy County units for Progress 

Energy coming up and we may have additional units for Gulf 

Power and perhaps others. 

So, to wrap up here, what I'm saying to you, 

Zommissioners, is that it doesn't matter when they pay any of 

the costs associated with the long duration forgings, they are 

still at the core of the plant itself, the nuclear plant 

itself, and they, in our view, clearly fall within the 

fiefinition of construction. Ergo, once a duck always a duck. 

3etting in line with Japan's Steel costs may be in line early, 

they still walk, quack, and look like a duck. 

You should deny their petition for a declaratory 

statement and, at a minimum, if you don't deny it, you should 

3efer making a decision on it and have a hearing on this, an 

svidentiary hearing so that we can put some price tags figures. 

4r. McWhirter, I know, has more dollar figures he could tell 
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JOU about with the right questions, but put dollar figures on 

chese numbers so that you all will know the extent of what you 

2re going to be tacking on my client's members bills before you 

20 ahead and do it. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, M r .  Twomey. You only 

ised two of Mr. McWhirter's minutes, so that's good. 

MR. TWOMEY: Thank you, sir. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Anderson, you're recognized, 

sir. 

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Commissioner Carter, 

Jomissioners. We appreciate the opportunity to appear before 

you today. 

FPL's petition for a declaratory statement is very 

important here. This is because it is the legislature's 

passage and this Commission's adoption of cost-recovery 

provisions that induced the company to begin the development of 

its proposed Turkey Point 6 and 7, which we have all spent a 

lot of time working on together. 

We feel it is essential that the laws be correctly 

applied now that they have been put forth by the legislature 

and enacted in rules through this Commission, so I would really 

like to focus my points, just put them in a very a simple way. 

Staff made these points, I think, very eloquently in their 

recommendation, and then I will add one other thing. 
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The question is how do we define preconstruction 

costs, and do advance payments fall in that definition. And 

the answer to that turns specifically on the time period in 

which those costs are incurred. I'm grateful to Mr. Twomey to 

have passed out the statute and the rule, because that makes it 

as clear as can be. The legislature started this in their 

efforts to induce companies like ours to make the major 

investments needed for a plant like this. And looking down at 

the statute that he passed out, 366.93(f), you see that 

definition, preconstruction is that period of time after a site 

has been selected through and including the date the utility 

completes site clearing work. 

Now remember those words, and turn to the next 

document, which Mr. Twomey had passed out, and is critical 

here. It is the Commission's rule, 25-6.0423. Please look at 

Item (2) (g), preconstruction costs are costs that are expended 

sfter a site has been selected in preparation for the 

construction of a nuclear or integrated gasification combined 

clycle power plant, incurred up to and including the date the 

utility completes site clearing work. There could be nothing 

nore clear. So with respect to Mr. McGlothlin and others that 

x e  asserting that our position is not consistent with the 

statute, in fact, directly implements the statute. It directly 

implements the rule, and that's what your staff's 

recommendation says. 
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One other point before I move on, before I conclude, 

is these points were actually considered when we worked 

together on the rules. We briefed this point at Page 4 of my 

response to OPC where I quote a portion of staff's 

recommendation in Docket 060508, which is where these new rules 

were adopted, and this was thought about in preparing these 

rules. At Page 4, a direct quotation, it says about site 

selection preconstruction definitions, FPL and PEF, the 

utilities, raised the concern that the definitions contained in 

Subsection 2 of the rule could be misleading. As several of 

the examples listed, both site selection costs and 

preconstruction costs were identical. Utilities proposed 

refining the definitions to make it clear that site selection 

and preconstruction are discreet time periods and that the same 

ongoing activity might begin as site selection and conclude as 

preconstruction. 

Accordingly, the language was revised more clearly to 

reflect that the terms site selection and preconstruction are 

intended to be definitions of specific time periods, and then 

it goes on. But that is the heart of this, is that this was 

macted by the legislature, put forth in your rule with the 

3xpress contemplation that the time period definition of what 

:he costs are is what's most important here. 

We, of course, visited it in the course of the Turkey 

?oint 6 and 7 need determination about the types of costs. We 
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this period. Right now we are talking advanced payments. 

Reservation payments are the type that we interchanged with 

considerably during those hearings. That's our focus here. 

The last point I want to take up is just reflect 

together on what is a declaratory statement action. The 

purpose is to declare the law based upon what is stated in the 

petition. There is no dispute here that advanced payments will 

occur. That's the key issue for purposes of application of the 

law here. Could considerations have been raised concerning 

uhat are the costs, the nature of the costs, all those types of 

things. And we all know that these rules beginning May 1 of 

this year, we will have those filings in front of this 

Zomission for consideration in detail of all those specifics. 

In addition, please recall that our best estimates of those 

zosts were included in the record in Turkey Point 6 and 7. So 

lone of this is any news, I think, realistically to people who 

nave followed closely these matters. For these reasons, 

Tlorida Power and Light Company supports staff's recommendation 

m d  asks that the declaratory statement be granted. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Anderson. 

Commissioners, and for the record, I wanted to just 

tind of remind the attorneys that have spoken this morning, I 

iear some grumbling, or it may just be your stomachs, about 

xime participation, but we allow -- when the Commissioners 
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allow parties to participate at our discretion, it's to assist 

the Commissioners. It's not an opportunity for parties to go 

on to say things above and beyond what will help us in making 

our call. So, as a courtesy, when the Commission offers an 

opportunity at our discretion for parties to participate, we 

are well within our rights to determine the amount of time that 

we give to the parties. And all of you have been here for 

eons - -  no disrespect, Mr. McWhirter, you know what an eon is. 

MR. McWHIRTER: More than an eon. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: More than an eon in your case. So 

I just don't want anybody to get off task here, and let's dial 

the rhetoric back a minute and get back to basics here. 

So what he have here, Commissioners, I just wanted to 

say that for the record, because oftentimes we have parties 

that practice before us, and they spend a lot more time 

lecturing than they do presenting their case. Not that any of 

did you that today. 

So let me do this, Commissioners, before we go into 

3ur discussion, before we go into our questions, let me ask 

staff to kind of reintroduce the issue so we can kind of get 

mrselves in the posture where we start our questioning phase. 

Staff, you're recognized. 

MR. BELLAK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I think that what has been presented demonstrates 

:hat you can lean heavily on one part or another of the rule or 
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the statute and come to what is a reasonable conclusion. In 

fact, the way the staff recommendation is formulated, it 

doesn't denigrate any of these conclusions or opinions because 

it recognizes that there is a degree of ambiguity and 

difficulty in applying the rule to this particular issue along 

the procurement items. And the way the staff looks at it is 

not so much as emphasizing one part or another so as to come to 

a conclusion, but it looks at it as a balancing exercise in 

which really what the Commission has before it are a number of 

alternative reasonable ways of looking at this situation. 

And the reason that the staff came up with the 

recommendation that it did is that this is one among a number 

of reasonable ways of looking at this question of what we call 

the hybrid of queuing costs which have some elements of 

construction and some elements of preconstruction, because they 

are necessarily incurred right up at the front end of the 

preconstruction time period. 

The reason we recommend selecting this reasonable 

2lternative among a number of reasonable alternatives, is this 

is the one most consistent with the intent of the statute which 

is an intent that all sides agree about, which is to get the 

?lant going, to encourage the construction of the plant. It's 

difficult to read into the statute and the rule the intent of 

:he legislature that if these costs are prudently incurred and 

iecessarily incurred at the very beginning of the 
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preconstruction period, that it is consistent with encouraging 

the construction of the plant to make the utility wait a decade 

or more before it recovers those costs. That doesn't seem to 

be the way the statute was set up. 

And, therefore, among a number of alternatives, any 

one of which reflect reasonable concerns, the staff recommends 

the alternative that is most consistent with getting the plant 

constructed, because that's the one element in the statute that 

all sides agree is part of the legislative intent. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioners, we're on the questions. 

Commissioner Skop, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I had 

hoped to have Mr. Devlin with us today in order to ask him some 

questions and have him opine, but it's my understanding that 

he's out on sick leave, so at the appropriate time I have quite 

2 bit to say on this issue, and I'll just defer at the moment 

for questions. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Questions? Commissioners, 

zues t i ons ? 

Commissioner Edgar, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Chairman Carter. 

I cannot let the opportunity go by to not ask Mr. 

qcWhirter if he would talk to us a little bit more. You raised 

3 phrase called the fairness doctrine and how that has been 
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applied by the Commission in the past, and I would just ask you 

to elaborate on that a little bit. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Well, I think Mr. Bellak gave us some 

insight. He says the philosophy of the statute is not to 

require the utility to wait a decade before getting its money. 

The corollary of that on the other side of the fairness scale 

is do you charge customers the total cost of an expenditure ten 

years before any customer gets the benefit of that expenditure. 

Every opponent to the petition here today agrees that the 

company can get its carrying costs on those expenditures which 

covers interest, including return to the investors, but it 

doesn't include the total cost of the expenditure. 

And I pointed out a Progress Energy issue, for 2009 

it's going to ask customers to pay $272 million for the Levy 

2ounty plants. Of that $272 million, 90 million of it is the 

zarrying cost on construction costs they would expend. So if 

IOU take that away from carrying costs and turn it into 

zonstruction costs, 90 million is 20 percent of what the total 

2osts are going to be, so that be would be $450 million. So 

:hat means if those construction costs were determined to be 

long lead time necessary costs, they would start collecting 

iext January from customers. 

The problem we face is these proceedings are by and 

.arge secret. So customers don't know what the long lead cost 

.tems are going to be because they come in under a 
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confidentiality agreement. Your staff will know, but Mr. 

Twomey and I won't know unless we sign a confidentiality 

agreement, and then we may not know from our experience whether 

that is a typical long lead type item. 

All we are asking you to do is apply a conservative 

application of the rule. We admit that nuclear plants are on 

the horizon, they're coming, and we want to be fair to the 

utilities. But we think it is pretty fair to the utility to 

give them the carrying costs rather than the total construction 

costs up front of construction items that are clearly cows and 

not chickens. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: That's a duck. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Sir? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: That's a duck. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Right. I used that because I looked 

-zp the phrase that is familiar to some of you, ejusdem generis 

3jusdem generis is a Latin phrase that is used in statutory 

ionstruction and rule construction. And the literal 

:ranslation of ejusdem generis is items of like kind. So what 

ue have here in the rule that you are looking at is 

ireconstruction costs are defined but not limited to items like 

Sngineering costs, items like permitting costs, and things of 

:hat kind. 

They talk about construction site costs which are 

varehouses that are put on plants and construction trailers, 
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but they aren't the core of the nuclear plant. Those items 

they're entitled to recover, and we acknowledge that they can 

get their carrying costs, but not the total cost, because 

customers in the future will not bear any portion of that total 

cost, because today's customers who are already fairly hard 

strapped for a variety of reasons are going to pay that total 

cost. And so the fairness doctrine is a weighting of scale, 

2nd that's all there is to it. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: I'm going to go to Commissioner 

Irgenziano, then Commissioner McMurrian, and then Commissioner 

Skop. 

Commissioner Argenziano, you're recognized. 

Wait one second. Had you completed your question? 

Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Well, I guess I have a 

zuestion for OPC, and maybe if FPL wants to respond. The 

statute, of course, was created to help expedite the building 

if these plants. And the recovery, of course, was to help the 

3xpeditious building of the plants. And I guess I really want 

co understand, when you say open ends, you are feeling - -  

rou're concerned that the petition has open ends as far as 

idditional costs that we may not be recognizing at this time, 

ind that is why you are asking for a hearing? 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Yes. Either a hearing or, if not a 

iearing, at least a definitive statement by the petitioner as 
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to the boundaries of what it's asking for. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: On preconstruction and 

construction? 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: On the extent to which, if the 

petition is granted, the utility would have the authority to 

charge to the capacity cost-recovery clause 100 percent of 

items that typically would be treated as construction costs and 

be entitled only to carrying-cost treatment provided by the 

statute. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. So to be perfectly 

clear what you are saying, is there more information that we 

should be looking at regarding costs being put up front? 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Yes. And by way of illustration, in 

the petition FPL alludes to three or four items, but says our 

petition is not necessarily limited to those, and they use the 

uord et cetera to further make the point that there may be more 

zoming. And it seems to me that in terms of understanding the 

impact of the decision, it would be incumbent on the Commission 

to require the petitioner to either put the specifics in front 

2f the Commission or deny its petition. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Do you want to hear from Mr. 

knderson? 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Yes. Anybody who really 

uants to respond to that, and the company may want to respond 
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to that, also. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Anderson, we'll listen to the 

parties and then we will come to you. Any other parties that 

want to speak to Commissioner Argenziano's question? 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, Mr. Chairman, just briefly. Thank 

you. 

Commissioner Argenziano, to expand the point of your 

question and Mr. McGlothlin's answer, yes, there needs to be 

some kind of an awareness on everybody's part of what they are 

asking in terms of dollars. The et cetera is scary. I mean, 

nany of us here are lawyers, and even people that aren't 

lawyers have more common sense. And the et cetera is 

dangerous, and the not include is dangerous. It would be one 

thing, it would be an entirely different matter if FPL was in 

nere by this petition saying we want to recover 100 percent of 

the cost next year of the $16 million reservation fee earmarked 

jirectly for the Japan Steel reservation for our pressure 

Jessel long-term fortune. You could get your hands on that. 

We could argue about whether they should get 100 

?ercent recovery as a preconstruction cost for what is clearly, 

in my view and AARP's view, a portion of the plant that is 

lefined as construction at the heart of it. We could argue 

ibout that, but at least we would know what kind of a cap they 

irere placing on the monetary demands to their customers. 

And we don't have that because it is open-ended in 
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terms of what it wants. And, again, the precedent that we have 

to face, although this is the largest utility in the state, we 

have to face the precedent that you give them or don't give 

them will be one that Progress Energy can use, as well. And so 

it's an open-ended blank check kind of a deal. I like that 

terminology. We don't like blank checks on our members' bills, 

but it would be a blank check times two companies. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Anderson. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I'd like to add just one - -  

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. McWhirter. 

MR. McWHIRTER: The Public Counsel and Mr. Twomey and 

I agree that the statute enables the utility to collect 

zarrying costs on construction costs. We believe that's a 

gracious plenty. And the reason we believe that is a gracious 

?lenty is because if they came in for a full rate case, 

Zarrying cost is all they would get. So they're getting the 

same thing they would get in a full rate case for construction 

uork in progress. And I think you ought to apply the Salvation 

4rmy concept, and that is we are here to help the needy not the 

jreedy . 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Anderson, you're recognized. 

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman Carter. 

Just very briefly. The words we're hearing from 

:ounsel, I respectfully submit, are exactly the opposite of 
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what the legislature intended. What we are hearing is the idea 

of piecemeal litigation of, you know, what individual costs are 

going to be over the course of years. That is the opposite of 

how we, as a state, can get this plant constructed. 

The idea of a blank check is also incorrect. We have 

an obligation of prudence, we have an obligation, pursuant to 

your rules, to leave our books open at all times and our plans 

open at all times for your staff to see, and we submit each 

year all of those costs as we go. 

So we are bounded by the close supervision of this 

Zommission, as we always are, and we take very seriously our 

2bligation to lay out as little money as reasonably possible as 

rJe proceed down these paths. 

And the last point is that the idea of the word et 

Zetera being scary, I just want to point out please consider 

:hat point in the context I just raised of the Commission's 

supervision. Also please look at the rule. Because it, 

itself, "(h), cites selection costs and preconstruction costs 

include, but are not limited to." So the use of the word et 

:etera simply just reflects the language which is in the rule 

itself. I'm happy to respond to any other questions, but those 

ire the points. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner, let me come back to 

~ou. I'm going to go to Commissioner McMurrian and then 

:ommissioner Skop, and then I'll come back. 
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Commissioner McMurrian, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. And it's going 

to this same point that we are on, actually, too. In the rec 

it quotes some of FPL's petition, and down near the bottom of 

the quoted section on Page 2 it says that FPL expects that it 

w i l l  have to make substantial advanced payments associated with 

long-lead procurement items, and as some of the parties have 

noted, that includes the reactor pressure vessel, steam 

generator shell, et cetera. 

And I wanted to ask Mr. Anderson, when we talk about 

2dvanced payments, I want to make sure I understand that term. 

4re we talking about some portion of the cost of perhaps the 

reactor pressure vessel, or are we talking about the 

2ossibility that we might be paying for the entire reactor 

?ressure vessel to make sure that the time frame for the 

:onstruction of the plant remains secure? 

MR. ANDERSON: We're talking about reservation fee 

laymen t s . 

COMMISSIONER MCMURRIAN: Follow-up? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: So you're talking about some 

:osts to basically hold your place to make sure you retain that 

yeactor pressure vessel. 

MR. ANDERSON: That's a specific example that we have 

111 visited on. It is a live example, as you know, from the 
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nuclear plant case, but that is exactly the type of thing we 

are talking about. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I guess a question, I guess I can either direct it to 

Mr. McWhirter or Mr. Twomey, and then, like I said, I do have a 

bunch to say on this issue. But the notion was mentioned, I 

think, by Mr. Twomey of a blank check and the need to have like 

sn Excel spreadsheet for definitization of what we could expect 

to see in terms of preconstruction cost or an itemization 

thereof. You know, I can understand that, but I can also 

Jnderstand that -- couldn't, or, in your opinion, could these 

not be addressed on a case-by-case basis as they arise to the 

sxtent that, you know, there is Commission supervision -- and 

?rudency determination, frankly, is king. If somebody tries to 

?ass off a cow, when it's in the duck area, then we might not 

say that that's prudent. But if there is a good reason for 

?utting a cow in the duck area, maybe we adhere to what the 

statute says. I just wanted to get your take on that. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, a good question, of course. 

Let me be clear as to a foundational issue here, what 

WRP is asking you to consider and conclude as well as Office 

if Public Counsel and FIPUG. We want to get the decision right 

irom the get-go today, essentially, or after a hearing. And 
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the foundation of that is that we are saying that the 

reservation fees, Commissioner McMurrian, are costs that are in 

the language of your rule, the specifics of your rule, the 

reservation costs to get in line with Japan Steel for the 

reactor pressure vessel or the shell of the steam generator are 

monies expended to construct the nuclear plant. Those are 

monies used, expended for the construction of the nuclear 

plant. 

So, our hope is, fundamentally, is that you will say 

those monies that relate to the nuclear power plant itself, and 

you're as aware of these things as most of us, or more so, is 

that the plant costs no matter when expended will be deemed to 

3e construction costs and will earn a fair return, that is 

:heir AFUDC rate, as they are accrued each year that the plant 

is under construction until such time as it goes into 

zommercial service. They will get a return on their 

investment, just like if it was in rate base. 

We're saying don't go for the argument, the company's 

irgument that these monies, just because they are expended in a 

zime period that's defined as preconstruction, makes them 

)reconstruction so that they get all 16 million, or 18 million, 

)r whatever they are going to come up with later. 

So to the specifics of your question, Commissioner 

;kop, if you decide today, the Commission decides today that 

;hey can get any monies from their customers in full, not just 
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a carrying cost return, but any monies in full they spend on 

reservation fees for this item or the other items that they 

come up with, or any items, I would suggest to you, any items 

that they choose to pay for in preconstruction period that are 

related to the cost of the actual plant itself, they could then 

come and say we are paying for it in the preconstruction 

period, we deserve 100 percent recovery, not the AFUDC carrying 

zharge. 

And by your decision, if you grant their petition 

today, they will say you have to give us the money provided we 

Zome in in this annual process and show that it's reasonable 

2nd prudent. And they may be able to do that. And we will be 

?ere watching them on that kind of thing, all of us will, and 

IOU will, as well, but our point is that we don't think we 

should have to argue about the prudence of construction cost 

items being recovered dollar-for-dollar from the customers. 

Does that answer your question? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yes. 

And, Mr. Chair, as a follow up, you know, I 

mderstand this. Simply it boils down to, I think, as a timing 

.ssue, and I'll get into that when I have my discussion. But, 

rou know, on a case-by-case basis, subject to prudency, when 

:here is a very, very valid reason for doing so, would it not 

)e more - -  and I do fully appreciate the intergenerational 
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inequity argument that can be made. But on a case-by-case 

basis, if there is a substantial cost savings or need to do 

something and you expense it versus capitalize it later, 

wouldn't that result in a tremendous cost savings? Because if 

you expense it, it's pay as you go, and you're not putting it 

into rate base where you're earning a huge return on equity 

year, after year, after year, after year. So in terms of total 

cost of ownership, would you agree, or I think you would agree 

that it may, in some instances, be more cost-effective in terms 

of total cost of ownership of seeing this through to 

completion? 

MR. TWOMEY: Commissioner Skop, it might be. 

But from our perspective, it ignores the point, or we 

need to go back and revisit the fact that, as I've said, we're 

311 aware here, what the Legislature allowed in 2006 is a 

substantial departure from traditional ratemaking. There is 

2lready, forgetting the preconstruction costs, as this company 

goes through and starts -- I mean, these plants are going to 

3e - -  we don't know what they're going to be, they are going to 

3e 3 or $4 billion a copy, maybe 6 or 7, we don't know, but 

:hey are going to be hugely expensive. 

As they pay their hundreds of millions or whatever it 

is for the NRC Applications, as they have engineering costs, 

Legal fees, site certification, DEP applications, and that kind 

if stuff, a lot of that stuff is going to be paid either 
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clearly as nondisputed preconstruction, or the items that 

aren't and they put in their construction account, customers 

are going to pay a return on every year in their current rates. 

And that means that people like my parents, who some of you 

still know, I think, from the hearings, who are in their 80s, 

late 80s, they are going to be paying through their current 

bills on the construction returns for plants that, 

unfortunately, they will probably never see go into service and 

take service for them. 

So under the legislative - -  the undeniable intent of 

the 2006 legislation, Commissioner Skop, there is a tremendous 

amount already of paying as you go intergenerational inequities 

associated with it. And what we are saying here is that aside 

from being, what we think, is inconsistent with the statute and 

your rule, having this piece added and maybe others, as well, 

is a bit too much of a good thing. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And as a quick follow-up to 

that - -  

MR. McWHIRTER: Can I add to that? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Briefly. 

MR. McWHIRTER: A long lead time is an item that is 

If value, but it's also an item that can be resold. So if the 

itility is entitled to get a return on a long lead item, I 

niould think that would give it adequate protection. And, also, 

nie don't want to have a lot of appearances before you to debate 
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these individual items that, for the most part, are coming in 

under confidentiality agreements. By ruling against this 

petition, you will eliminate a multiplicity of debates, and I 

think that's something that the Commission should be aware of. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Mr. McWhirter, can I cut you off 

there? Because I am planning on addressing that, and I think 

that is a point you raise. Because, again, I think - -  I fully 

appreciate the intergenerational inequity arguments, but I'm 

tempering that with the total cost of ownership. And I think 

that -- no one is going to make any more money. In frank, it's 

a timing issue, and if you get paid as you go on some things 

where there is prudency which provides adequate protection, the 

total cost of ownership is cheaper. And the point I was trying 

to make as a follow-up, and I will get in and out of this, and 

then I have a whole bunch to say, but the point I was going 

back Mr. Twomey is that when these proposed units come in line, 

or future units, actually, I will probably be an AARP member 

then. And part of my concern is that, you know, by everyone 

maybe paying just a little bit more sooner rather than later, 

again, if these costs - -  some of the costs are fully 

capitalized, that's a huge balloon. You're talking billions of 

dollars. 

So I guess what I'm looking at is that if everything 

goes into the rate base, and it's this huge payment, rates are 

going to go up substantially. I think Mr. McWhirter spoke to 
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that. I won't, because, again, that is a pending proceeding. 

But, again, it will have, in some aspects, I think, a smoothing 

affect on the total cost. 

Now, I think that the argument is is it unfair to 

burden people that may never see this in their lifetime? Well, 

it's an argument. But, just briefly, and then we'll go in, and 

like I say, I do have quite a bit to say. 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman, might I just briefly? 

Commissioner Skop, you may be right on the 

fundamental mathematics about the leveling effect, okay, of 

paying as you go. And I have already tried to suggest to you 

that that is already built into the legislative scheme, and 

this is piling on, in our view. But you could carry - -  

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Let me stop you right there. 

How is it - -  because to me, and maybe I'm not 

inderstanding something, maybe you can help me clarify it. But 

if they expense it in a given year, there is no AFUDC, there is 

io interest, you are done, it's like you bought your movie 

xicket and you're going to Disney World - -  I mean, you bought 

(our ticket and you're going to Disney World for the day, as 

ipposed to being year, after year, after year paying more, on 

;op of more, on top of more, kind of like compound interest. 

so, to me, if you pay for something - -  say I could buy 

;omething. Say I could buy that duck today. 

MR. TWOMEY: You can. 
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COMMISSIONER SKOP: Say I could buy that duck today 

for five dollars, but ten years from now that duck would cost 

me ten dollars. So if I can make a good argument to pay you 

five dollars today for that duck, and mothball the duck, and 

hopefully he will be fruitful and multiply, but maybe not, then 

I'm effectively saving money, because the ten dollars that I 

would otherwise pay for the duck later going into the rate base 

would be, you know, maybe 100 once you are done paying for it. 

So, again, I think that my point turns into being is 

that, unless I'm missing something, you say that it is a 

Hindfall already. Well, if you expense something, you're done 

Hith it. You have paid for it, they can't recover on it on a 

forward-going basis. You're done, it's expensed. Now, if you 

hold it with the anticipation of putting it into the rate base 

later, your revenue requirements are certainly going to go up 

because you will have a huge input into your rate base that 

you're paying a return on equity on. 

So, again, I'm not advocating for anything, but I 

hope that when I get into my discussion of the things I want to 

Ciiscuss, after we get out of our question period, I think it 

Mill become apparent that in some instances on a very limited 

Zase-by-case basis there may be tremendous cost savings in 

loin9 just what the statute and the rule reflects. Because, 

3gain, if you pay for it once, it's pay as you go, you're over 

2nd done. I'm not advocating everything, or abuse of that, 
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because prudency is king. 

If you are asking me to buy the duck today, and you 

don't need the duck until ten years from now, I'm not going to 

let you buy the duck. But if there is a good reason for buying 

the duck, and you need to sit on the duck for all the right 

reasons, because you're not going to be able to buy the duck, 

3r the duck is going to cost 100 times more than it would 

today, then maybe there are reasons on a case-by-case basis 

uhere you would consider absorbing that expense so that you 

don't have to pay ten times or a windfall more on that later. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Commissioner, could I speak to that 

Eor a second? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Briefly, yes. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Three quick items. With respect to 

;he mentioning of the prudence test, FPL has said in its 

ietition, yes, our request is somewhat unusual, and there may 

)e more of them, but that is okay because the Commission always 

.ooks to prudence. We have to demonstrate prudence before we 

:an have our way. 

I will make the point that what they are putting in 

'ront of the Commission is nothing that isn't already there. 

'he prudence test is what they would have to pass to be 

mtitled to use the carrying cost alternative that the 

egislature and the Commission gave them by statute and rule. 

o that adds nothing in terms of the regulatory approach. If 
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it is construction costs, it's the carrying costs test and not 

the 100 percent recovery, and prudence governs in either 

scenario. 

With respect to the idea of savings, first, I 

mentioned in OPC's pleading that with respect to the 100 

percent recovery to the extent the IRS sees that as revenue 

that carries with it an income tax obligation, that is an 

sspect of the smoothing that FPL has ignored, and I haven't 

seen it addressed in the staff, either. And that is an offset 

to whatever savings you see there. 

In addition to that, this goes to the overall 

werriding subject of the legislative intent that staff counsel 

2ddressed and that counsel for FPL addressed. I think we need 

-0 remember that while the legislature designed a statute to 

sncourage investment in nuclear facilities, it had different 

ipproaches for construction costs and other things. 

And to the extent that it requires construction costs 

:o go into rate base and to be recovered over the life of the 

issets, that indicates to me a legislative intent to not 

:ompletely abandon the fairness doctrine that Mr. McWhirter 

iddressed in his comments. It says, yes, we are going to 

)rovide you an incentive, but it is not unlimited, and we are 

irawing the line here, preconstruction versus construction. 

md when the rule implementing that statute defines 

:onstruction cost to include permanent structures, equipment, 
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and systems, and when staff agrees that these heavy forgings 

fall within that category, to argue that they somehow lose that 

character by virtue of a timing difference fights against the 

direction of the rule. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yes, sir. And let me cut you off 

there. And, again, I wish Mr. Devlin was here today, because, 

again, I have vetted this thoroughly through staff. But I do 

appreciate that, and I will discuss that openly when we get 

into our discussion period, because I think that that is a 

goint. You know, those points are appreciated, and I have 

clonsidered them in trying to vet through this. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner. 

Before I recognize Commissioner Argenziano, Mr. 

t'womey, let me give you some words of comfort there. You are 

Ialking about your parents being 80 years old; I was watching 

3omething on TV the other day; do you know that there is over 

L O 0 , O O O  people in the world that are at least 100 years old? 

$0, take heart. At that, Commissioners, we are going to take a 

luick - -  

Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I just wanted to tell you.1 

;aw that, too, and the places where they are over 100 and 

iigher than that, one place is Sardinia, Italy, and they 

ittribute it to the wine because it has ten times more 

mtioxidants in it. So when you are there buying your red 
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wine, make sure it is from Sardinia. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: So there is hope after all. 

Commissioners, we are going to take a ten-minute break. 

(Recess. ) 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: We are back on the record, and I'm 

glad that we had that break, because it just dawned on me, I 

had completely forgotten all about lunch. I didn't even tell 

anybody about lunch plans. So, sorry. When you're drinking 

this good old water here, you just forget all about lunch. 

But what my plans are, Commissioners, for us in terms 

of the day, so we can all plan, is that we are going to do 

about another ten minutes. We are going to recognize 

Zommissioner Argenziano for questioning, and then Commissioner 

Skop, and then we will break for lunch. After those questions 

de will take maybe an hour for lunch and come back from there. 

So, I will say more about that in a minute, but right now let's 

2roceed. 

Commissioner Argenziano, you are recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. 

I am getting a little worried because the ducks are 

nultiplying over there. There's another duck that has 

3ppeared. 

I guess I have a question for FPL. And, you know, I 

lave been - -  the whole Commission has been supportive of the 

3lan. I certainly have been. My question goes to the rule and 
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the statute. And you mentioned before the words but are not 

limited, and you said that was the same thing as - -  basically 

said that was the same thing as et cetera, and I just don't see 

it as the same. I think but not limited, and then you 

understand that again, you know, the rule doesn't say you don't 

have to show what you are not limited to. You have an idea of 

what you are not limited to. This cost, the cost of that, so 

on and so on. Et cetera says to me that it could be whatever 

and it is not known. So the only problem I have with that is 

the not known and it could be writing a blank check, and I 

Nanted your assessment of the two. 

MR. ANDERSON: I think it is helpful to focus on the 

sxact question that we asked to be answered in the proceeding 

rJhich is that if the Commission grants FPL's petition to 

determine the need, which you did, are advanced payments made 

?rior to the completion of site clearing work, that is the end 

If the construction - -  I'm sorry, preconstruction period, 

?roperly characterized preconstruction costs to be recovered 

Iursuant to the mechanism. 

So, you know, we have focused pretty much upon 

reading, as does your staff, both (9) and (h) in the rule 

lefinition, which says that the costs include, but are not 

-imited to, and then lists a lot of different things. In our 

letition we mentioned things like the shell, and the forging, 

ind the this and the that. And we are being as forthright as 
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we can in terms of what we know about 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I'm sorry, and I need to 

cut you off. And please continue, but it's the et cetera that 

is not the same as not limited to. 

MR. ANDERSON: I think they are very much similar. 

Et cetera means other things of this kind. Not limited to - -  

again, the core point here is that the preconstruction costs in 

our view are defined by a time, but are not limited to or et 

cetera. If the cost is incurring in this time and it is 

prudent, those are preconstruction costs. That's what the rule 

provides. And what we are focusing on is that subset of 

preconstruction costs which are advanced payments. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Well, then just a follow-up 

question very quickly. If you feel that et cetera is the same 

2s not limited to, why don't you just remove et cetera and go 

Mith not limited to as specified in the rule and the statute? 

rhat's why I'm having a hard time. Et cetera to me says it 

zould be whatever and not known. 

MR. ANDERSON: In our petition, in my opinion, the 

vords but are not limited to could have been just as well. It 

vas pure drafting choice of shorter. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Commissioner, may I point out 

something in response to that? I believe I heard counsel for 

FPL say that as the rule operates if a cost is prudent and is 

ncurred prior to the completion of site clearing it qualifies 
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for preconstruction. And if that's correct, that expands 

enormously the category of costs which, according to their 

proposition, would qualify for the 100 percent recovery. It is 

not limited to any advanced payments of heavy forgings, it is 

anything that comes before a point in time and is prudent. And 

that illustrates the open-ended nature of the ruling that they 

are asking you to make. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner Argenziano. 

Commission Skop, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Like I said, I had quite a bit to say about this, so, 

like I say, I will try it make it brief and then we can break 

for lunch. 

I guess for me, I saw this issue emerging about 

2lmost a year ago, the tension between the rule and the 

statute. And I think that some of that has been recently 

reflected in the direct testimony during the need determination 

3y Kim Ousdahl, and hopefully I said that name correctly, on 

Page 4 where they outline the site selection costs, 

?reconstruction costs, construction costs, and then the gray 

2rea within what is defined as preconstruction costs. 

And with respect to Mr. McGlothlin, Mr. Twomey, and 

4r. McWhirter, I guess sometimes we can agree to disagree, and 

lopefully at least some of my comments that maybe we can 
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respect and understand. Specifically, OPC in staff's 

recommendation emphasizes the nature of the costs, and I think 

historically that has been accurate, but I think times have 

changed to some extent. And what I would like to do is to 

briefly, you know, go through what I wanted to say starting 

with the staff recommendation. 

In principle I concur with the staff recommendation, 

but also I think it's necessary to add further clarity within 

2ny declaratory statement that this Commission issues on this 

important issue before us today. And what I would note, at 

least from my reading of the statute, the rule, the staff 

recommendation, and my sole legal analysis that the advanced 

layments are not limited to the example provided within the 

;taff recommendation. I can articulate some other examples 

:hat I could logically think of. But, nevertheless, 

ireconstruction is defined in the rule and it is a bright line 

iased on a date rather than the nature or character of the 

3xpense. I mean, that's just a plain reading of the statute 

md the rule. 

Third, the petitioners seek to have the definitions 

.nd provision of the Rule (2) (i), construction costs, limit the 

!efinition in (2) ( g ) ,  which is preconstruction costs, and that 

.ets into the nature and character of the expense which the 

.efinition of preconstruction doesn't anticipate. 

But, fourth, regarding the staff recommendation, you 
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know, the rule may not fully appreciate the scope of the 

statute, and when there is tension it has got to yield to the 

controlling statute. So I think that this discussion of the 

rule implicates the need to consider the statute. And just 

applying the statutory construction analysis that I took a look 

at on my own, looking at the statute what does it tell us. 

Well, I think there are three takeaways from that. First and 

foremost, it provides for cost-recovery irrespective of plant 

completion. That's the law of the state of Florida right now. 

Like it or not, that is what it is. So they are going to get 

cost-recovery. 

Secondly, there is a bright line rule for 

?reconstruction costs. It's based on a date and time rather 

than the nature or character of the expense. 

And, third, the statute provides, arguably, a new 

?aradigm for cost-recovery as opposed to the traditional 

lotions of viewing capital expenditures. Simply put, the 

ireconstruction is more of a pay-as-you-go method where you get 

:omplete - -  you request recovery, not saying recovery will be 

ipproved, but you request recovery, and if you get recovery 

lased on the prudence and everything before the Commission, 

.t's paid for. You're done. You're not accruing interest, 

'outre not accruing things that will later be put in the rate 

lase, which there's a return on equity and shortly the total 

:ost of ownerships are arguably much cheaper. And that's part 
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of the task of this Commission is to ensure that affordable - -  

and anything I can do to take a look at where there is 

opportunity to minimize costs, tempering that with the 

intergenerational inequities, I think I have a duty and I think 

the Commission does to do, also. 

So, basically, knowing what the statute tells us, at 

least in my eyes, and what the staff recommendation tells us 

and the rule, I think really that this is much adieu about 

nothing. This is simply a timing issue of when you are going 

to get paid. You know, arguments can be made by front-loading 

some expenses when they are prudent to do so could result in 

reduced total cost of ownership. And I think that, again, this 

is an expense versus capitalization argument. Certainly if you 

put a lot of - -  billions and billions of dollars into the rate 

base, the revenue requirement is going to be substantial. So 

front loading could serve to smooth the curve instead of having 

the peak when you dump it into rate base. 

I think counsel for M R P  and OPC, as well as Mr. 

YcWhirter have raised concerns about adequate protection in a 

3lank check. I think adequate protection exists. We have 

?rudency determination, okay. If they bring something an in 

2ccelerated cost proceeding under preconstruction costs and we 

lon't agree with it, they don't recover it. It goes in the 

rate base. That is a default. The rate base is a default. 

3ut putting it into rate base is more expensive to the 
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consumers at the end of the day. 

Again, by front loading it and recovering expensing, 

you know, you do save that interest, the carrying costs, the 

AFUDC, the return on equity that you would incur later. So, 

sgain, I think it is a balancing. I'm not saying it is a blank 

check or open-ended. I think it is very limited on a 

case-by-case basis. 

Again, prudency is the underlying check and balance 

gower of this Commission to prevent any abuse of anything that 

is brought forth that we don't agree with. And I'll talk more 

2bout that in a second. And, again, I'm trying to be brief, 

2nd I think probably I've got about two or three more minutes 

2nd maybe we can adjourn for lunch. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: I want to give some examples, 

zhough. And, again, I think that this is where perhaps the 

;taff recommendation didn't consider -- you know, it gave one 

Sxample in terms of the advanced forging reservation payment, 

ind we ought to already address that subsequently after our 

ietermination of need. And, so to me, we know this Commission 

ias blessed that for what I feel to be the right reasons. 

Another example of work and material, and, again, 

:his gets back to when does something become a capital item, 

the context of advanced m d  this could logically be in 

)ayments. How components work And, again, this is from my 
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own personal knowledge of seeing these built. You start with 

the forging. Or actually you start with a raw block of 

material, then you make the forging, then maybe you do some 

initial machining, then you do some heat treatment, initial 

heat treatment. Then maybe you take it out and do some 

intermediate machining, some final machining, maybe some more 

heat treatment, welding. But, nevertheless, you start with a 

raw block of material, and it becomes a work in progress. 

And what I have seen, at least, in my many years of 

sngineering practice and procurement of large scale items is 

chat at certain points in the line as you are paying for the 

naterial, you have the work in progress that it is assuming its 

Einal form. You have performance or progress payments to the 

Jendor at certain points of completion. Now, at that point you 

:an't identify what the material would be. I mean, you know 

:hat ultimately it may come into some certain form, but at what 

ioint that character and nature changes is up to debate. 

igain, that is a fine line. 

But if there are things that fall within 

)reconstruction arguably that also is based on a bright line of 

L date, not the character or nature of what is being built. 

[ow, traditional notions have been capital expenditures for 

:spital equipment or capital expenditures. Again, I think that 

he statute provides a new paradigm for how you look at that. 

nd, again, it's not a windfall, because they are going to get 
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cost-recovery under the statute irrespective if they never 

build the plant. So the issue is, it's a timing issue, and I 

think that that is a more logical way to look it at. It is 

simply all about the timing. It is not about more money. In 

fact, front loading, although it may cost consumers today a 

little bit more money in their bill, will reduce the total cost 

of ownership of this plant, because it won't be exposed to the 

AFUDC, nor will it be exposed to return on equity that it would 

incur in the rate base. So, it is like a compound interest if 

you stick it in the rate base versus if you just pay for the 

?in and you are done with it, and you put the pin in holding. 

Finally, another third example would be something I 

Mould characterize as others. And, again, a case-by-case 

2asis. You could arguably look at a piece of what would 

iormally be capital equipment and have a substantial reason for 

mying that now, whether it be cost escalation risk, whether it 

3e not being able to procure it at the time, whether it be we 

ire in the midst of what people would call a recession and you 

:an get a much better deal now because people are hungry for 

iusiness. But, arguably I could see taking it to the extreme. 

ind, again, the burden is on the person proposing seeking 

:ost-recovery to prove that things were prudent, and that is a 

iig burden to go 

But, again, the open-mindedness of the statute seems 

:o imply that that is allowable. But if you could buy a 
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component today that would cost you $100 million versus that 

same component ten years from now would cost you $500 million, 

and that component is needed for the plant, and you can make a 

good business case on why that would save the consumer money, 

you are guaranteed cost-recovery anyway under the statute, it 

is just a matter of timing. And arguably it's cheaper to buy 

it today at $100 million and not bear the AFUDC and all the 

other things that would incur if it went into rate base than it 

would be to buy at $500 million plus all the return on equity 

plus the AFUDC of carrying it for those ten years, or the time 

in place. 

So to me there is somewhat of a benefit to being a 

little bit more openminded in terms of a new paradigm of how we 

2ddress things versus the traditional rigid notion of a capital 

zxpenditure is a capital expenditure is a capital expenditure. 

4nd what I mean by this is that simply put nuclear 

lost-recovery is going to be a miss -- I always do that. 

Vuclear cost recovery will be a risk management exercise for 

:he IOUs. And in doing that, they're going to seek to balance 

:he long-term returns for their shareholders, which would be, 

;.e., additions to the rate base subject to prudency 

letermination at a later date, i.e., maybe they do something 

m d  it takes a haircut, versus the certainty of near-term cost 

recovery, which would be the prudency determinations and PPCR.  

;o it is kind analogous to the capital structure. 
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It's like in the capital structure of a corporation 

you have your debt to equity and you have got skin in the game. 

Well, here I can't see anyone having the risk tolerance to 

throw everything into capital and into the rate base later. 

So, I think you will see that balancing, and if that balancing 

provides savings in terms of total cost to completion, total 

cost to ownership for the ratepayers, maybe that's not a bad 

thing. I understand the intergenerational inequities, but 

perhaps front loading is not a bad thing. 

And I know there has been a lot of opposition to 

that, but I don't think anyone in this room can deny there's 

cost savings associated with that. I don't think anyone in 

this room could deny that under the statute they are guaranteed 

zost-recovery. So, again, it boils down to a timing issue and 

if you on a case-by-case basis when such things are prudent and 

they can save money by not having to put them in the rate base, 

?erhaps that warrants a more critical look by this Commission. 

2nd that's what I would advocate for in terms of trying to 

iarmonize the tension between the rule, the statute, the 

requests that this Commission can expect to receive from the 

LOUS. 

Again, not a blank check. Mr. Twomey, I'm very 

;ensitive to that. Need to constrain costs and certainly no 

Liay are all expenses going to be front-loaded. That's just 

lot - -  that's not prudent. But there are cases, limited cases 
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on a case-by-case basis that I could envision, and hopefully 

maybe my colleagues could where such requests provided with the 

proper business case to show the cost savings, provided with 

the knowledge that paying for it today in full and maybe 

mothballing it or paying for it in progress payments along the 

line is effectively cheaper than expensing it - -  I mean, than 

capitalizing it and putting it in the rate base where it just 

balloons and we will be paying for it long after I'm off this 

earth. 

So I would just ask that the parties to kind of 

consider that, and also my colleagues. And I think I have 

taken enough time, but I think I have tried to hit on the issue 

that, you know, that the IOUs are going to risk averse, and 

this nuclear cost-recovery is going to be a risk management 

exercise, and I don't think that they are going to put 

averything into capital. I think on some things where it's 

grudent they are going to want to shed that risk and get 

immediate prudency determination and payment. 

But, again, if that's saving the consumers money in 

che long-run, is that necessarily a bad thing? And I think 

:hose are the trade-offs under the new paradigm and the 

intested statute and rule that the Commission needs to properly 

2onsider. Because I don't see it is a as windfall, because, 

igain, the statute provides clearly they are getting paid. The 

mly thing is do you put money at risk by capitalizing it 
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seeking to get that recovery sooner. And I think that there 

are cost/benefit analysis associated with that, but the burden 

is clearly on the utilities subject to the scrutiny by this 

Commission and subject to scrutiny by the members of AARP, Mr. 

McWhirter, and OPC to make sure we are doing the right thing. 

But I think that open-mindedness under the new paradigm of the 

statute is, perhaps, a good thing. 

And I have probably said enough, but, you know, 

again, I saw this issue emerging almost a year ago, and I knew 

it would come to head sooner rather than later. But it is an 

important issue that we need to tee up not only as a 

Commission, but through the stakeholders and the utilities to 

ensure that we get the right result. And I think I have said 

all I need to say. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner. 

I think that, like you were talking, about timing, 

and timing is everything, and so I think it is time to take a 

pause for the cause. 

So, Commissioners, we are on break and we will come 

back at 12 - -  excuse me, let’s try that again. Let’s come back 

at 1:45. All right. We are on recess. 

(Lunch recess.) 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: We are back on the record. And 

last time we left, Commissioner Skop was making a couple of 
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comments. 

Commissioner, to kind of kick us off here I'll let 

you finish the comments that you were making. Commissioner 

Skop, you're recognized, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Again, 

I just wanted to briefly conclude in summation I support 

approval of staff recommendation and request only that 

additional language be added to the order reflecting that the 

Commission will consider requests for preconstruction cost 

recovery treatment on a case-by-case basis. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry. I did not 

understand that. Could you say that one more time? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You look like I feel. Let's try 

this again. Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: I just - -  I am so sorry. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you. Let me try and 

cllarify this. 

I support approval of the staff recommendation on 

this limited issue. But also based on my comments, I do think 

that on a forward-going basis with respect to preconstruction 

Zost recovery treatment, that needs to be assessed by the 

:omission on a case-by-case basis, and that's consistent with 

:he staff rec. But, again, I do think that the question 

?resented to the Commission regarding advanced payments is a 

xoad question and I think it's been somewhat narrowly 
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tailored. I just want to reserve the fact that that's a 

question as to what, what advanced payments encompass, so. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioners, do you mind if I 

just kind of take a moment? Let me get myself together here. 

Mr. Cooke, I just kind of want some guidance from you 

because - -  if I misread it, please help me, but I was under the 

impression that that was encompassed within the confines of 

this. Is that right, or did I miss something? 

MR. COOKE: I think that what Commissioner Skop is 

noving for is consistent with staff recommendation. I think he 

danted to make it clear, listening to his prior conversation on 

this, that there may be other types of payments that fit within 

vhat staff's recommendation is. In other words, we focused on 

long-lead advance payments, and Commissioner Skop gave some 

2ther examples of types of payments that may well be consistent 

uith what staff's recommendation is. 

We're doing a declaratory statement, so we are 

lealing with the facts that were presented to us. That doesn't 

nean that we're precluding other things down the road that may 

fall within this same framework. And I think - -  

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: But, Mr. Cooke, if, if we 

Jent with the declaratory statement today, does that then tie 

)ur hands on the long-lead procurements? Should they be given, 

rou know, accelerated cost recovery on every one that comes 
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before us if we voted for the declaratory statement today 

rather than by a case-by-case? 

MR. COOKE: That's not my interpretation of our staff 

recommendation. We in this case looked at long-lead payments, 

advanced payments that are necessary for queuing purposes and 

that's what this declaratory statement is geared to. Yeah. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I don't - -  

MR. BELLAK: Commissioner Argenziano, I'd like to 

address what you're asking. I think that it should be 

clarified that what FPL is seeking in this declaratory 

statement, as I understand it, is that they want to make sure 

that they can ask. So we're not granting anything, long-lead 

or anything else. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Well, Mr. Chair. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I was under the impression 

if you have a declaratory judgment, then you have basically -- 

if you're not being, I guess, specific about what they could be 

given accelerated costs to on long-lead procurement items, then 

there could be things that come down - -  basically what I see 

today, and I don't know why, but I don't - -  I think that if we 

?assed, if we voted yes on the declaratory judgment, we are 

3asically saying that that ties our hands and that anything you 

zome with down the line basically for that, for those purposes 

m the accelerated cost recovery for those long-term, long-lead 
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MR. BELLAK: Well, this is case by case, and there 

are a few different questions subsumed in your statement. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Right. What is case by 

case? I'm talking about the declaratory judgment. 

MR. BELLAK: Right. This is not a declaratory 

judgment. It's a declaratory statement. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Statement. I'm sorry. 

Statement. 

MR. BELLAK: And all the declaratory statement does 

is clarify some legal categories. What it says is that if they 

come before the Commission - -  remember Mr. Twomey mentioned if 

this, he said if this were a particular item and they were 

asking for treatment of that particular item, he could get his 

hands around that. 

What FPL is seeking in the declaratory statement is 

they want to make sure that if they ask for one of those items, 

they won't be met with the counter position by the Commission 

that, well, we wish we could consider this but actually it's in 

a different category and legally it doesn't fit within the 

rule. That's all they're asking. And if you issue the 

declaratory statement, what you're saying is we won't foreclose 
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saying that if you do ask, that it will be granted because we 

don't know whether any particular item is going to be prudent 

yet. That's all going to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I understand the prudency. 

Back up there. But I'm not sure - -  and maybe this will give 

you a better understanding of what I'm thinking and maybe I 

just can't articulate it well. I'm not sure that the rule 

didn't expand the statute and what is - -  et cetera to me is, 

like I said before, that doesn't, I don't, I don't know what 

cetera means. And if you tell me that you're going to build 

maintenance sheds, things that are a preconstruction cost to 

facilitate the building of the plant itself, which I am in 

favor of, but those type of things I understand is 

et 

preconstruction and I don't want to lose the ability to go down 

the line and look at it case by case. And you're telling me 

maybe for prudency, but if you lump it in into something that I 

don't think the statute really intended, or maybe it did, I'm 

not sure - -  and I guess maybe asking legal staff and then maybe 

even OPC and the company if, if - -  I guess we'll go back. I 

think maybe the question should be does the rule expand the 

statute? 

MR. BELLAK: Right. Well, the, the, that's an issue. 

That's one of many issues. You're raising a lot of issues. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I know. 
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MR. BELLAK: Let me see if I can go through them one 

at a time. 

We don't think that it expands the statute for this 

reason, and this takes us back to the ejusdem generis argument 

that Mr. McWhirter made. 

What you're talking about is a payment that's 

necessary as a prerequisite for any construction to happen at 

all. If they can't get in the queue, then they can't construct 

anything. So in that sense we analyzed those queuing costs, 

the expense to get in the line as a prerequisite to 

construction and therefore a preconstruction cost. So we're 

not expanding - -  we're not pretending that this is 

construction, but it doesn't matter if we expand the statute or 

not. We're saying we've analyzed this. It looks like a 

hybrid. It has some qualities of construction-related costs in 

it. Nobody is denying that. But it also is a prerequisite to 

zonstruction because if they don't get in the queue, there is 

no construction. So we're analyzing it as preconstruction. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Now just because I just 

nave to go there. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I understand, and I'm 

zrying desperately to understand really, excuse me, 

ireconstruction. To me preconstruction means what it says, 

ireconstruction, not prepayment of something. And I see 
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there's two different things. That the forging, for instance, 

is not going to be used or even on site for many, many years, 

so I'm not sure that's preconstruction as the statute would 

indicate. I think the preconstruction is preparing the site, 

doing things to facilitate the construction of the plant. So 

it may be just in our differing interpretations of 

preconstruction. 

MR. COOKE: Commissioner, can I take one quick stab 

at the statute, which is the statute defines preconstruction 

based on time alone. And then it directed us as a Commission 

to figure out alternative mechanisms for recovery of any type 

3f cost that is associated with the nuclear plant. And cost as 

fiefined in the statute talks about capital costs, et cetera. 

30 what we were faced with in the rulemaking was really trying 

to find appropriate mechanisms to recover cost. But I don't 

zhink that our rulemaking expands on or is broader than the 

statute. If anything, we tended to narrow and we tended to 

took at creating mechanisms for appropriate cost recovery. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: But to that point, I looked 

it it that way too and now I'm seeing it both ways. It could 

)e looked at the other way of saying just what I said before, 

:hat the forging is more of a prepayment than a, than a 

:onstruction. It's not the preparing of a site, it's not those 

:osts. So if you look at it the other way, that it's not 

yeally going to be utilized for ten years or even it's just 
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something that has to be ordered up-front, maybe then that 

changes the definition. Because if you read the statute, you 

know, it basically says the costs incurred in the siting, you 

know, licensing, construction and all that. So I'm not sure 

and - -  

MR. COOKE: I think that's the rule. If you look at 

the statute, the definition of preconstruction is -- 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I'm reading the statute. 

MR. COOKE: Okay. Well, my reading of it is that 

period of time after the site has been selected through and 

including the date utility completes site clearing work. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: But if I can, where does 

that get you to though that anything is included? 

MR. COOKE: I think it is a timing issue. We were 

jrappling with the timing of the preconstruction. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: But the timing of the 

?reconstruction, if you consider the forging a preconstruction 

item - -  just having all kinds of problems with this one. I 

inderstand what you're saying because that's the way I 

iriginally looked at it. 

MR. COOKE: Right. I hate to go back to the, to the 

inimal analogies, but I think we saw the queuing cost as being 

ieither a duck nor a cow. It was in essence a hybrid. And the 

ntent of the statute was to find a mechanism to recover cost 

.n a way that enables a nuclear plant, which is going to be 
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difficult to construct because of risk management purposes, to 

be facilitated. And in this case in our, in our rule our 

definition of preconstruction has both a time element to it and 

a type element to it. And we believe that these types of 

costs, the queuing costs, it is appropriate to interpret our 

rule as allowing recovery through the cost recovery mechanism 

for preconstruction costs. It is consistent with the statute. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: And why do you need a 

declaratory statement if they can recover anyway? Obviously 

FP&L can recover those costs anyway. 

MR. COOKE: Well, they're asking if they can recover 

it through the capacity clause, through the clause mechanism. 

In other words, the kind of discussion that we've had earlier 

today, whether it's going to be put off into capital costs that 

2re recovered in rate base with only getting carrying costs. I 

nean, they're -- I think Commissioner Skop really spent some 

good attention on this. They're going to recover these costs 

m e  way or the other. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Right. Right. And I'm not 

saying that - -  Commissioner Skop, you know, has, Commissioner 

;kop has his expertise here and he definitely brought out some 

ioints. And, of course, while saving today is a good thing, 

I'm not always sure that, I'm not sure of certain things that 

I'm trying to get answers to. So maybe we can, we can go here 

m d  see if I can get some answers to that. It looks like Mr. 
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Twomey - -  

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. And 

very briefly to the, one of the initial questions I think 

Commissioner Argenziano asked staff, and it's a critically 

important one in my view, and that is what - -  if you, if you 

approve this petition for a declaratory statement, what do they 

get? And I would commend to you, Commissioners, that we need 

to look what the question is they asked you to answer and not 

pretend to understand what they want. 

matter entirely. And AARP would say it would still be wrong 

pursuant to the rule if they were only asking to recover the 

$16 million or so associated with the long-lead determinations, 

the reservation charge for the reactor vessel. 

It might be a different 

But I would commend to you just very briefly on Page 

6 of their petition, Paragraph 16, and let me just read. "In 

light of the foregoing progress of this petition, the proposed 

question to be answered by the Commission in this petition for 

declaratory statement is if the Commission grants Florida Power 

& Light Company's petition to determine the need of the 

proposed Turkey Point Units 6 and 7 , "  which you've done now, 

"are advanced payments made prior to the completion of site 

clearing work properly characterized as preconstruction costs," 

quote unquote, "to be recovered pursuant to the mechanism 

provided in Rule 25-6.0423?" Which, of course, as you recall 
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means if they are, they get 100 percent almost immediately, not 

a carrying charge on. So if you go to the question, they're 

not asking that your answer be limited to, to reactor vessel 

reservation charges and that kind of thing. They're saying in 

the paragraph below in the wherefore, they want you to declare 

that advanced payments made prior to the completion of the site 

clearing work are preconstruction costs as defined by the rule. 

Which would mean if you grant that, that anything arguably, the 

legal answer would be anything they choose to pay for prior to 

the completion of the site completion work would be a 

preconstruction cost defined by the rule and would be eligible, 

be mandated that you give them 100 percent recovery under the 

preconstruction cost language. 

So I just, I want to be cautious. We, you know, we 

have our disagreement that - -  our thing is the, you know, look 

2t the character of the cost and they say the time. And your 

staff has agreed under this hybrid deal, look at the timing of 

uhen they do it. We have a clear disagreement there. We're 

saying the character of, not the timing. But, but know what 

jou're asking - -  know what they're asking you to answer before 

jou give them an answer and think that it's only one specific 

zharge. They're asking for a license. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Let me do this, Commissioners. I'm 

joing to give Mr. Anderson an opportunity to respond. Then 

C'11 go to Commissioner Skop and then Commissioner McMurrian. 
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Mr. Anderson, you're recognized. 

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman Carter. First, 

staff has stated exactly correctly what your rule states and 

Nhat the statute states in terms of definition of 

classification of the costs by timing. That could not be more 

clear and is, is probably the fundamental legal point for us 

here today, I believe. 

We have been very, very clear in our petition of what 

rJe're seeking. It's three or four lines above, it's advanced 

?ayments associated with long-lead procurement items. That's 

sxactly what we've been talking about. You heard about those 

in our nuclear need case: For example, some of the forging 

reservation costs and things like that. 

Those are the types of things we're seeking this 

'omission's determination that, yes, they fit in the 

?reconstruction bucket, so to speak, if they are made in this 

Iime window before the end of site clearing. What does that 

nean? Does that mean there's a blank check and we just get 

noney? Absolutely not. It means, as staff's counsel was 

stating, that those costs when incurred will be presented to 

:he Commission in the annual proceedings for review. They'll 

ictually be presented a year in advance to the extent that we 

mow so parties can know about them, and there will be no 

;ecrets of these things. We have an obligation of continuous 

ivailable information for our project costs and things for this 
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project. And it could - -  that is just the beginning point. 

The Commission then sees those costs a year in 

advance, then the costs are actually expended, then there's a 

prudence determination. The prudence determination as to was 

it the right amount to pay, were these the right terms and 

conditions, all of that will be subject to proof and discovery 

2nd things, you know, in the years forward as we go through 

this process. But to assert that this is just a way to, you 

know, dump things onto people's bills, absolutely not. 

The key focus to this is recognizing that -- we 

mticipated exactly this argument we're seeing about cows and 

ducks; not in those words. But we wanted to make it real clear 

that we all start from the same point, that costs incurred 

2etween the time we declare a site, and we have, Turkey Point, 

2nd the time we complete that site clearing, which is expected 

10 be in 2011, our advanced payments in that period will not be 

received by this argument. That's exactly the purpose of this, 

30 that they're in the bucket for consideration as 

ireconstruction costs. I hope that's clear, and I'm happy to 

mswer any other questions. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Anderson. 

Commissioner Skop, then Commissioner McMurrian. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just 

ianted one point of clarification, then I have a question for 

Ir. Twomey. 
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I think what I was saying previously when we started, 

when we came back from lunch essentially and the gist is that 

in my view the preconstruction costs, preconstruction cost 

recovery is not limited solely to the queuing cost example 

provided by staff, and I would reference to the statute. The 

statute does not define constructions costs, as, as does the 

rule. So, again, I think the statute is, is very broad and I 

think the, the rule properly synthesizes that. But at the end 

3f the day preconstruction is a bright line time, I mean, a 

bright line date in time under which, under the statute and our 

rule. All costs, if prudent, are recoverable under 

?reconstruction costs. 

But my question to Mr. Twomey, I think that, you 

mow, again, this goes back to the blank check argument and 

3eing able to dump things into the preconstruction bin, I think 

in response -- and, again, I'm well aware of the 

intergenerational inequity argument, but, again, part of the 

?ublic Service Commission's obligation is to approve fair and 

reasonable rates. And, again, if we can balance that rate by 

Zapturing or leveraging the cost savings by considering 

requests on a case-by-case basis, how does prudency review, how 

loes prudency review not provide adequate protection for 

nsuring that things don't go into the preconstruction cost bin 

-f they're not appropriate? Because the default fallback - -  

iecause, again, all, under the statute they're going to get 
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complete cost recovery irrespective of plant completion. So, 

again, it's a timing issue. It's do you get paid in full now 

and avoid the carrying costs and the return on equity costs 

that you would incur later? So I think my question is why does 

prudency review - -  if they bring a request to us for 

preconstruction cost treatment and we say, no, that's not 

prudent, the default is for it to go back into the 

capitalization bin where you guys are arguing that the costs 

should be. But, again, I think that prudency, you know, 

provides that adequate protection that you're seeking. I just 

wanted to get your opinion on that. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, I appreciate that. I think, I 

think we're using, Commissioner Skop and Commissioners, we're 

using the word "prudency" differently perhaps. Okay? 

Our, again, very briefly, our threshold argument is 

that this particular cost for the pressure vessel doesn't 

Delong in this basket. I'm concerned that you seem to be 

uilling to expand that basket, that they can put more things in 

che preconstruction based on the time line. 

But now to your prudency question, okay, the way I 

Jiew this, and I've been doing this 29 years now, almost half 

ny entire life, prudency would be they bring the reactor vessel 

in and they say it's in this basket. And Public Counsel might 

lave a witness, we might have testimony, and we would say our 

widence would suggest that you should have spent $350 million 
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for this and you spent 500. So there's no question that you 

should have a reactor vessel for a nuclear power plant, but 

whether you purchased it at the right price. So that would be 

the prudency issue there. And once you have decided that the 

reservation charge for the reactor pressure vessel goes in the 

preconstruction basket, the question would be only whether the 

amount they're asking for could be recovered 100 percent, not 

whether it belongs there based on the question they're asking 

you to answer here. So - -  and if you found any monies, monies 

imprudent, not the items, if you found any monies imprudent, 

then in my estimation they wouldn't get a second chance at that 

in the rate base recovery or the carrying cost deal. What they 

would do is they would get - -  the amount that you found prudent 

ivould be recovered 100 percent through the capacity cost 

clause. 

Now am I responsive, being responsive to your 

que s t i on? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yeah. Let me respond. And, 

2gain, I don't want it to be construed that, that I'm trying to 

xoaden something, because, again, as an attorney and a 

'ommissioner I'm trying to balance what the statute says based 

in the plain language of the statute, statutory construction 

liith our, with our rule. And, you know, I think that we're - -  

[: disagree with you. 

If, if somebody was trying to put something as a 
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preconstruction cost and it didn't pass muster, like it was 

accelerated way, way in advance of where it needed to be, then 

that would be an issue which would be encompassed by the 

prudency determination. 

But what I am advocating for is that, you know, to 

the extent that there are certain pieces of equipment that 

traditionally have been viewed as capitalized items, under the 

new statute and the cost recovery it basically provides a new 

paradigm, at least in my mind, for cost recovery as opposed to 

traditional notions of viewing capital expenditures to the 

sxtent long-lead payments, progress payments, or I would even 

logically extend it based on the statute to the extent if I 

zould buy that - -  I'm going to use the duck example. If I 

zould buy the duck today for $10 and it's a capital piece of 

3quipment and it would cost me $500 ten years from now, or 

:here might be a host of other reasons why it might be prudent 

:o buy it now and just expense it, you know, why shouldn't that 

3e open if it ultimately saves consumers money? Because I do 

Ihink that's reflected within the statute, 366.93(1)(f), where 

it defines preconstruction costs. Because that's -- it's a 

]right line based on a date, not the character or nature of 

ise. 

And I think that's the tension here is historically 

Zharacter and nature has driven the capital item. The capital, 

:spital items are capitalized, I mean, capital expenditures or 
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capital equipment are capitalized. Here there's a little bit 

of a tension between that traditional notion and the bright 

line that's based on the date, not the character or nature or 

use in preconstruction. 

So, again, we have prudency review to make 

determinations. But at the end of the day if it results in a 

cost savings that benefits consumers, I mean, that seems to me 

that it would be, it would not be prudent of the Commission not 

to consider such things. I mean, I'm not saying, again, I'm 

not saying a blank check, but I'm saying that the Commission 

under the existing statute, the intent of the statute and our 

rule should be willing to consider those, those hybrid things. 

And, again, I think that the one limited example 

provided by staff to the extent of the queuing, queuing cost 

example, I could think of a host of other more, other examples, 

and I think I articulated some of those, where, you know, it 

could provide the basis for a request being properly 

entertained by the Commission. I'm not saying that request 

sJould be granted. But, again, if it's not granted, if we say, 

20, sorry, guys, you know, this is, there's no reason to buy 

the duck today instead of ten years from now, then go recover 

it ten years from now. So, again, I think it's that screening 

?recess. 

But I also think that the statute is pretty broad and 

:he rule, I think, is equally broad, and I think staff's done 
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an excellent job of harmonizing the two. But I think that 

there's always going to be this disagreement between the 

traditional notions of capitalized equipment versus being able 

to recover some or all of that in the preconstruction period. 

But the statute is pretty clear to me, plain language: 

!?reconstruction is based on a date, not what you're buying. 

So, I mean, just a brief response to that. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir. And, first of all, I 

inderstand where you're coming from. The - -  I think it's 

Zlear, I'll speak for myself, we believe that it's the 

Zharacter of the expense not the time that it's made that 

should judge whether it's preconstruction or construction. 

fou've taken a contrary view. And I appreciate that you're, 

IOU have an obligation to vote here and I believe entirely that 

jou're trying to do your best job to protect the law, be true 

10 the law and protect the consumers' interests as well as the 

:ompany ' s . 

As to the part about having more capital costs 

2xpensed early on resulting in a lower overall cost, okay, 

:hat's true to an extent. And the extreme would be if the 

:ompany expensed all of its costs every year until the plant - -  

.et me finish. Let me finish. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: I assure you I would not let that 

iappen. 

MR. TWOMEY: I know. But I'm saying that would be, 
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that would be the extreme example where you would end up having 

no increase in rates because nothing would go in rate base. 

Now with respect to the balancing point of how much 

of, of early recovery of capital items in advance recovery is a 

good thing for consumers, I would ask you respectfully to, to 

look at the three of us sitting up here. I represent an 

organization that has 2.95 million members in this state. 

Mr. McWhirter represents large industrial customers that are 

acutely, companies that are acutely aware of energy costs and 

that kind of thing. Mr. McGlothlin's boss, J. R. Kelly, is 

statutorily charged with the responsibility professionally, 

we're all attorneys, of best representing the interest of all 

the customers of FP&L. 

And what I'd ask you to consider, Commissioner Skop, 

m d  all of you, Mr. Chairman, is that we're out here telling 

you on the issue of how much is enough on the, the early cost 

recovery, we're telling you enough is enough and that there's 

2lready enough in the, in the statute clearly and that we don't 

need clearly construction items given a hybrid treatment so 

:hat they're brought in early. 

And, again, lastly, read the question that they ask 

IOU to answer, to look at and see the answer they want to get. 

rhank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: One moment. I'll be back - -  I'm 

join9 to go to Commissioner McMurrian first, assuming 
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Commissioner Skop is done, and then I'll come back on this end. 

Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER S K O P :  Thank you, sir. I just have two 

quick follow-ups on that question. 

Again, I think, Mr. Twomey, you would agree that 

under the existing statute it provides the basis for cost 

recovery irrespective of plant completion. Is that, is that 

your understanding? 

MR. TWOMEY: Do you mean if they, if they were to 

drop the - -  

COMMISSIONER S K O P :  Not, not turn it on, right up to 

the day before they said we're walking away. The statute 

?rovides for that; right? 

MR. TWOMEY: I'm afraid it does. 

COMMISSIONER S K O P :  So I guess what I'm getting to is 

:his is merely a timing issue. And I think the only argument 

1s you guys are properly advancing it is the intergenerational 

inequities argument. And I'm contrasting and balancing that, 

m d ,  again, that's a tough balance because I fully respect your 

:onstituency and yours as well as yours. But at the end of the 

lay, you know, total cost of ownership, if there's a 

;ubstantial cost savings that can be leveraged and realized by 

ierely expensing something or having the ability to expense 

iomething now based on, you know, the facts that were prudent 

.o justify doing so versus arbitrarily dumping it under 
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traditional notions into capital or capitalizing it where 

you're going to be paying a lot more later, I'm just trying to 

understand. Because at the end of the day they're going to get 

paid somehow, someway. It's this timing issue. 

And I think the tension, as I see it, boils down 

to - -  under what I'm advocating for it would be analogous to 

asking everyone to pay a little bit more now as opposed to 

everyone pay a lot more later. And I understand that tension. 

But, again, if the total cost - -  because if you're talking 

2bout putting billions upon billions upon billions of dollars 

into a rate base earning a return on equity, that number - -  I 

don't want to even contemplate that number. But, again, if you 

clan kind of chip away a little bit of that, then that's a 

tremendous cost savings. 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman, just briefly. 

Commissioner Skop, it's already there. The 

iompany - -  this company has issued press releases that have 

2een interpreted by the media as saying that within a short 

?eriod of time that their customers will see an additional 

;6 per month in rate increases due solely to the Turkey Point 

5 and 7 plants and that that will carry on for ten or 11 years 

inti1 the plants go into, into service. 

By contrast to that there have been comparable press 

reports that say that for Progress Energy, because of their 

Jevy plants and their being a smaller company, that their rate 
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increases will go into effect eight, nine, ten years in advance 

of the plant producing electricity are going to be $9 a month. 

So what I'm, what I'm trying to make clear, Commissioner Skop, 

is that the transfer of rate base capital through early 

recovery and the reduction of AFUDC, which is always the big 

chunk in traditional ratemaking, is already going to take 

place. To the extent that your theory - -  and I respect where 

you're coming from. I understand it. To the extent you're 

saying it's a little bit more that educes that in rate base 

2mount, I'm saying that I think all three of us, I know I am, 

snough is enough. We don't want it As people that present 

zonsumers, we don't want any more. 

Now you have to vote on it and you, you know - -  and I 

understand where you're coming from. I'm just saying from out 

here, from my client's perspective we don't want any more. 

Enough of a good thing is enough. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioners, just I wanted to 

come to Commissioner McMurrian, but I do need to give - -  in all 

fairness to Mr. Anderson, you made representations as to what 

the company said. So in all fairness, Mr. Anderson, you're 

entitled to respond to that. You're recognized. 

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Commissioner Carter. And 

this is a very, very important point. What counsel stated is 

2bsolutely not right. In fact, this past week there was a 

nisstatement and a mischaracterization of our company's 
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position in the Atlantic - -  Atlanta Journal and Constitution, 

the newspaper up there. We sent them information pointing out 

exactly that the calculations that we submitted in our case you 

saw showed bill effects of between 43 cents to $5.80 for 2009 

through 2020. And the article that counsel may be referring to 

incorrectly implied that a $6 charge would be applied to 

zustomers' bills as part of preconstruction costs. That just 

sbsolutely is not so, and I'm very grateful for the opportunity 

to point that out. And, in fact, we did receive notice that 

there will be a correction printed in the newspaper. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner Skop, have you completed your line of 

Jue s t i ons ? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Just one, one brief response, 

Jlr. Twomey, and I promise I'll make this very brief. 

Mr. Twomey mentioned that, I think, that they don't 

vant any more. And, again, I don't, I don't see it as being 

my more because the costs are going to be the same. By 

)pen-mindedness you have the opportunity to mitigate total 

:osts, and to me that's a balancing act between the tradeoff 

letween intergenerational and total cost. And I think that 

;here is something to be said by expensing something rather 

;han carrying it and putting it in the rate base. Because 

Tou've got the AFUDC and then you've got the return on equities 

tnd so on and so on. I think we agree there is a cost savings 
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for doing that. It's just a matter of whether that should, 

that tradeoff on a limited amount should be absorbed by current 

ratepayers as opposed to future. And I respect, because 

there's countervailing arguments there, but I am sensitive to 

the advocacy on that point. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner. 

Commissioner McMurrian, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you, Chairman 

I still need to be clear, I guess, on what we're 

joing to do after today, and I know that depends on what the 

Jote is. But let's assume that we were approving the staff 

recommendation, because I think that's where we started this 

jiscussion on. 

And, Mr. Twomey, when you were talking, at one time 

{ou said something -- I think you clarified it later, but I 

just wanted to make sure. You said if we said yes to the 

leclaratory statement, that 100 percent of the recovery -- and 

['m not sure I'm saying this exactly correctly, so I should say 

I'm paraphrasing. I think you said 100 percent recovery of the 

:ost would be approved as prudent. But I think you later 

:larified that just because they ask for recovery through the 

iuclear recovery clause, it doesn't necessarily mean that 

.OO percent of those requested costs would be approved as 

)rudent. We would look at those costs and they would be 

;ubject to our examination. We would approve whatever we felt 
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MR. TWOMEY: I think I, I think I tried to say the 

latter. Again, because there's going to be a prudence review 

no matter which pot of money they put these things in for 

recovery. Again, our argument is, is that - -  and, again, it 

would go back to whether they got it at the right price, 

whether they needed it for what they were doing. And if they 

did need it for what they were doing, whether they got it for 

the right price and installed it correctly and that kind of 

stuff. And I'm confident that will happen irrespective of 

which pot it goes in. Our fundamental disagreement, again, is 

that we don't want that reactor vessel, pressure vessel money 

going in the preconstruction pot. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: I understand that. I'm just 

trying to get straight -- Chairman. I'm trying to get straight 

nihat we would do. And I think you did clarify to the latter in 

2 later response to Commissioner Skop. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, ma'am, I tried to 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: So I think we're on the same 

?age. But I also did want to ask you, I think when we talk 

3bout the amount though that perhaps there's more to it. I 

;hink if - -  and I'll just say what I think and then we can all 

zalk about whether or not that's right, and feel free to tell 

ne I'm wrong. But if FPL were to make a request through the 

iuclear cost recovery clause, if we approve this today and they 
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were making a request for a long-lead procurement item 

requiring advanced payment, I think they would still have to 

show that it was, in fact, a long-lead procurement item and 

that, two, that it did require an advanced payment of some 

sort, and then we would also be talking about the amount 

itself. And I just wanted to throw that out there. But I 

think that even if we approve this today, we would still have 

those hurdles to jump through in the nuclear cost recovery 

clause. Okay. Go ahead and tell me where I'm wrong. 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman. No, ma'am, you wouldn't. 

Because, because while Mr. Anderson talked about what was above 

the question they asked on Page 6 of their petition, what I 

think is critically important here is to read the question, 

forget all the rest of the stuff that's in there, because 

they're asking you to look at a specific question and give them 

2 specific answer. And the, and the question they raise, 

inless I'm reading it incorrectly, doesn't make any mention at 

311 about long-lead items and reservations. Okay? If they 

uanted to say that, they could have said it. 

What it says instead is that any payments they make 

irior to the completion of site clearing work be properly 

Zharacterized as preconstruction costs to be recovered 

-00 percent from the customers, and then they reaffirm that 

:hey want you to give them that answer in the wherefore 

iaragraph that follows. That's, that's my concern. If they, 
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if they had wanted to ask for a very narrow question, I could 

have drafted them one, I could do it right now, that would have 

said, you know, give us permission. Is it, is it permissible 

for having the reservation charge for this one item that we 

estimate would cost $16 million for the reservation of the 

place at Japan Steel for the forging of the pressure vessel, 

can it be considered as a preconstruction cost and recovered 

100 percent instead of through the less advantageous but still 

good deal of getting a carrying cost? Okay. They could have 

said that. 

Now the, the - -  they're asking you to answer a 

specific question, and if you answer that, you're going to give 

them a broader license than if you constrain it. 

At the end of the day if you, if you approve this and 

mswer this question as they've presented it to you, then what 

jour staff thought they wanted, FP&L wanted is not going to be 

2articularly germane. So did I answer your question? They can 

_ -  

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: I think you did, but I 

juess, I guess I've got a new one now. Because I saw, whenever 

C was asking my question I saw Mr. Anderson nodding and then I 

saw Mr. Casey grabbing, I mean, Mr. Hinton grabbing papers. 

ind I sense that perhaps maybe the question as worded before us 

.s not exactly the same as the way FPL worded it in their 

)etition. I don't have the petition in front of me, so I ' m  
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going on what you read. But I do, I do understand they're 

asking for this to be determined preconstruction costs. But 

when I look at Issue 2 as worded, it includes, "to the effect 

that," the declaratory statement, "to the effect that long-lead 

procurement items requiring advanced payment up to and 

including the date of site clearing work are preconstruction 

costs." So I guess I was assuming that was the question we 

were answering. But if it's not, I mean, we need to get that 

clear now. 

MR. TWOMEY: I would, I would submit, Mr. Chairman, 

Commissioner McMurrian, that it's not. You need to, you need 

to read their petition because it is their, it is their 

petition which is the foundation document for this case today 

that is controlling. Now you can change it, I suppose. They 

could agree to let you change it. But it's, it's the question 

in the petition, not what your staff says in the staff 

recommendation. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Let me add to that, if I may, 

Commissioner. 

In addition to what Mr. Twomey said, prior to the 

lunch break counsel for FPL said to one of the Commissioners 

that the long-lead items are a subset of a larger universe of 

costs which could be qualified under preconstruction if, if 

they occur prior to the completion of site preparation and if 

they were demonstrated to be prudent. So I think the 
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implications of your decision will go beyond queuing of large 

forging items even if the staff recommendation was intended to 

be limited to that. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to 

hear from Mr. Anderson as well as staff. And I do -- I know I 

keep reading, I don't mean to do this, but in the 

recommendation statement it does say, "Yes, the Commission 

should enter the declaratory statement requested by FPL." So 

there is some, you know, the wording in the issue and what the 

recommendation statement says. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Let's hear from Mr. Anderson and 

:hen we'll hear from Mr. Hinton. 

Mr. Anderson, you're recognized. 

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman Carter. Staff's 

raising the issue is perfectly what we mean. That's exactly 

irhat we're asking for. A yes to that is exactly where we wish 

10 be in this particular case. 

To OPC's counsel's point, the point about being a 

;ubset, this goes to the idea that, as we talked about all day, 

;ite selection costs, between the time period of the site 

;election and the end of site clearing, those are all site 

;election costs, and that's the subsection (h) of the rule. 

'hat's the "include but not limited to" we all talked about 

:arlier about costs associated with preparing, reviewing and 

lefending a combined operating license, costs of engineering, 
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designing, all those things. So these costs falling in that 

time frame like all those other costs, it's a time-sensitive, 

it's a time-based definition. Those are the, those are the - -  

that's what our, our petition hinges on. And staff has 

articulated the issue presented in this particular case exactly 

right. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Hinton, you're recognized. 

MR. HINTON: When approaching this issue it was 

staff's understanding that it revolved around advanced payment 

for long-lead procurement items. But before I make any other 

legal pronouncements about how your order will say what it says 

and that that's what really matters, I'll allow a legal, a 

lawyer to tell you that. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Bellak. 

MR. BELLAK: Right. If, if you take a look at the 

recommendation, it starts out with Florida Power & Light's very 

xoad statement that Mr. Twomey is, is mentioning, but that's 

lot where it ends up. Because what we recommended in Issue 2, 

2nd from my standpoint it was just being conservative, we 

recommended that you grant as to the queuing costs. It was not 

uith any prejudice toward any further requests they might make, 

2nd that response to Commissioner Skop's point that there are 

ither things that might be considered. And, and what we did 

vas we narrowed it to encompassing queuing costs, and we can 

aake that clear in the, in the order, and the reason we did 
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that is because that's what they mostly talked about. That's 

where their argument was centered. So we knew more about that 

than we knew about other things that in the abstract might come 

up later that we don't know much about. 

So if we, if you approve the declaratory petition, 

what the order would say would be, it would consider, it would 

be a declaratory statement as to queuing costs. But that would 

not mean that they couldn't ask for other kinds of things and 

then we could consider them too. But this thing is limited to 

queuing costs, notwithstanding the fact that there's a broader 

statement which I put in the case background. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Mr. Hinton, did you want to 

2dd anything to that? 

MR. HINTON: Yes. Thank you. I just wanted to give 

you a little bit of background about our reasoning when we're 

looking at long-lead procurement items, advance payments. And 

:he word "hybrid" is very, it's a very key word to use in this 

2ecause we're talking about a particular cost that could fit 

into either category. By nature it's, you know, we're talking 

ibout costs that are going towards a piece of equipment that 

vi11 be in the plant itself. It lends itself to the, what, you 

mow, the other examples of construction costs as contained in 

:he rule. 

However, we're looking at this particular advanced 

iayment, it's a critical path payment. It's something that 
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it's necessary for them to expend these funds at this time in 

order for this plant to go in service when, when, the planned 

in-service date. So it's necessarily incurred during the 

preconstruction time period. And that's why it's kind of a 

hybrid. It could fall into either way, it could be addressed 

either way by the Commission. And staff felt it is appropriate 

for them to be able to come in and, and present these costs for 

recovery as preconstruction costs. And, as has been repeated a 

couple of times, that is going to be subject to your review and 

your approval. 

And - -  but the flexibility about - -  I think there's a 

certain matter of flexibility within staff's recommendation as 

to how you address that when they bring it in for recovery. 

Right now we're just saying, yeah, these advanced payments on 

these long-lead procurement items, if they're incurred during 

the preconstruction phase, you can come in and ask for recovery 

3s preconstruction costs. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you 

Commissioner McMurrian, had you completed your - -  

2kay. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Chairman, could I make an 

2bservation on this line of questioning? 

I take great comfort in the presentation that staff 

nade that we're only talking about specific kinds of things 

:hat have long leads and we're not talking about all 
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construction costs. The problem is that site clearing date is 

an undefined date and it's totally within the domain of the 

utility to determine how long it's going to take it to clear 

that site. And if you consider all preconstruction costs up 

until the time they get around to clearing the site, they can 

get the total cost of things that normally would be 

construction costs. Well, I think if you look at the statute, 

the statute has talked about planning and preplanning items 

like engineering, which is very expensive, licensing, which is 

very expensive, they let you collect the total cost of those 

things. And that's what Commissioner Skop is talking about, 

that you can get that in its entirety and that's going to 

reduce costs in the long run. But construction costs, the 

legislation says that you only get the carrying cost on the 

2rojected construction cost balance. 

So I would suggest to you that what you want to do is 

30 with what the staff has said on the long-lead items, let 

:hem collect the total cost of those long-lead items that 

zhey've proved to be prudent, but give them a limited period of 

:ime in which to identify long-lead items. You need to tell us 

vhat those long-lead items are going to be by the end of 2008 

;o that we can begin to identify and let you prove to us that 

:hese long-lead items are prudent. And if you come in three 

rears from now and say, well, this is another long-lead item 

ind we haven't completed the site yet so we have to fight about 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

92 

that again, I think you're unduly prolonging it and I think 

you're going beyond what the legislators had in mind. They 

weren't thinking that it would take three years to get some 

palmettos off the ground in South Dade County, for Pete's sake. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: I promised to go to Commissioner 

Argenziano and then I'll be back to my colleagues on my left. 

Commissioner Argenziano, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. And just bear 

with me for a couple of minutes because I'm going back and 

forth on this. 

I do disagree with staff as far as the declaratory 

statement. I think it would tie our hands in the future on 

things that we determine to be prudent long-lead procurements 

2nd foreclose arguments in the future, and that concerns me a 

great deal. 

But what I think I want to take a step back to, 

2ecause I had questions and then there's a couple of things I 

vant to say in closing at the proper time, but I want to go to 

:his now because Commissioner Skop raises some excellent points 

:hat we need to look at. But what I'm finding is that we don't 

lave the answers for everything. 

One of my questions was going to be what is long-lead 

items? What are they? Is the rule expanding the statute? I 

lave a bunch of questions. And what I come back down to is 

Issue Number 1, "Should the Commission grant OPC's request for 
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a hearing?" And since the public - -  and as Commissioner Skop 

said, this could be a great savings for the public, but they're 

the ones who are going to foot the bill. And I think that at 

this time with all these unanswered questions, and we're 

talking about hundreds of millions of their dollars, I think 

there would be no harm in granting a hearing to bring out more 

information on all parties. FPL could come out with more 

information saying this is why we need to do it this way. And 

I think that since they are the people that I answer to, I 

would rather move to - -  and I'm probably not going to get 

anywhere, but I don't care. I've been here before. Since 

there are so many things of such importance in a hundred 

nillion dollar project which the people pay for, I believe that 

they deserve a hearing. So that would be where I would go at 

this point and say let's go to the hearing, not close down - -  

you know, defer the declaratory statement because it may be 

uhat we do ultimately. I don't know. But I'd like more 

information before I move forward, and I think the public 

jeserves a hearing. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner Skop, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Chairman Carter. 

Just going back to staff's comments with respect to 

:he hybrid, and, again, I'm looking at the statute in 

166.93(1) (a) where it defines cost includes but is not limited 
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to all capital investments. And I go down to the definition of 

preconstruction in Item (f), and it's basically preconstruction 

time, again, to the date utility completes site clearing work 

preconstruction costs shall be afforded until recovered in 

rates, and then it talks about the alternate recovery mechanism 

in terms of cost recovery clause and preconstruction costs. 

Nowhere in there do I see the definition of construction costs. 

So it to me, the statute - -  the last time I checked 

statute trumps rule. The statute seems to me to imply that the 

capital expenditures incurred in the preconstruction period are 

preconstruction costs. Again, I'm just going by, by my own 

opinion, and it won't necessarily reflect the - -  excuse me? 

MR. TWOMEY: It's in there, Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Well, I ' m  looking for it, 

but - -  

MR. TWOMEY: If I may, Mr. Chairman, let me just 

goint it out. It doesn't have a headline in the statute like 

?reconstruction does. But if you look at (2) (b) , it says, 

"Recovery through an incremental increase in the utility's 

zapacity cost recovery clause rates of the carrying cost on the 

ltility's projected construction cost balance." So in my view 

I think that what you're looking for in terms of the 

zonstruction cost - -  

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Well, I think - -  let me, let me 

;top you there. Again, when it talks about costs in (1) (a), it 
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talks about all capital investments and then it talks about 

preconstruction. Again, I think the tension here is that the 

preconstruction period is a bright line indifferent of the 

character or nature of the expense, and I think that that's 

just the underlying tension. And I think as staff has tried to 

harmonize in our rule, the need to reflect the intent of the 

statute and capture that in what some people would deem to be 

gray areas - -  and, again, I think it's pretty clear on face but 

I know that there's probably some difference of opinion. But, 

3gain, I think that the, the adequate protection is that of the 

orudency determination and the diligence of the Commission to 

nake sure that, you know, it's not being abused, that it's 

there for the right reasons when it makes sense to save money 

2t the end of the day for consumers. Because, again, if I can 

2xpense something in today's dollars and not have to pay the 

Zarrying costs on that and pay the return on equity associated 

vith that, I'm certainly willing to do that if there's a 

zremendous cost savings associated with it. 

So, again, I just wanted to clarify that. Because to 

ne the statute, again, I think if it came into tension between 

rule and the, and the controlling statute, that the rule would 

lave to yield to the statute in my opinion. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner. 

Commissioners, we've had a vigorous section for 

iuestions and comments from both staff and then the parties. 
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We need to proceed now to our discussion and our debate. So 

we're now in discussion and debate on, on Item 3 ,  excuse me, 

Item 5 and the issues pertaining to that. So let's, let's get 

into that mode. Thank you so kindly. I mean, we've got a lot 

of questions, a lot of interesting questions and those were 

answered and all, but now we need to proceed to our discussion 

and debate. So we're now in the discussion and debate, and 

this would be limited to Commissioners. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Edgar, you're 

recognized. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Commissioner Carter. 

I have a few very brief comments because I haven't made any yet 

on this item, which is, as we all know, incredibly unusual for 

me. 

I have enjoyed the discussion very, very much, and it 

makes me harken back to, you know, listening to some of the 

discussion at the legislative committees when this new statute 

was first proposed and was moving through that process. And I 

know at the time, at the time as a sitting Commissioner and as 

a regulator I remember thinking, you know, many of these issues 

at the time the statute or the proposed statute at that time 

ivas moving through and how would we in this body debate some of 

these issues and how would some of the issues come forward. 

?md so it's just wonderfully intellectually stimulating to have 
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some of this debate and discussion as the next step in that 

process; tedious but yet intellectually stimulating. 

And when we went then after that point in time, and 

Mr. McWhirter mentioned it in particular, the Legislature gave 

us six months to adopt a rule, and we spent a lot of time 

during that six to eight months, and I know the staff went 

through many, many, many drafts and iterations and trying to 

think through next steps and steps two, three, four, five, six 

years down the road. And I remember at the time here at the 

bench and some of our discussion in my own mind thinking that 

nrith the rule that we ultimately adopted that there may be a 

?oint in time years down the road where it may need to be 

zlarified or some additional language added just because we 

hiere all going to be kind of learning together. I also know in 

ny mind at the time the rule was proposed and then adopted by 

:his Commission that I felt like we had done really an 

?xcellent, excellent j o b ,  realizing that we never have complete 

cnowledge of the future and how things will ultimately be 

implemented and what issues will ultimately arise as we all 

nove forward. But I know that we had a full, full discussion, 

lots of participation, which always pleases me. 

And in my mind, and I remember from the discussion, I 

Ihink, and others as well there was very much the desire and we 

ioped the actuality of putting into the rule some 

:larification. But even in addition to that, additional 
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reassurances, additional steps to protect the ratepayers, to 

protect the state, this Commission, quite frankly, and the 

applicants such that it was a process that could move forward 

but that would have procedural due process and lots and lots 

and lots of light shined on what was happening at different 

steps through the process and through the years. 

So I say all of that just because as I've been 

listening to the discussion I have been thinking back over some 

of the discussions that we have had on these issues over the 

last couple of years, and I know we will have more, and that is 

the beauty and also probably the tedium of the annual review 

process that is built into the rule, for the project that this 

Zommission has recently issued a need determination and 

gotentially for other projects in the future as well. 

So with all of that I think we have had some really, 

really great discussion. I expect that we will be talking 

2bout many of these issues and related issues more in future 

?roceedings, some in the very near future, and I look forward 

10 that as well. But yet I ' m  going to try to bring us back to 

:he issues that are before us which are somewhat narrower than 

some of the discussion that we've had, and that is on the, on 

Issue 1, the request for hearing, although I always love a good 

iearing, in this instance in my mind, you know, this is a legal 

issue, it is a legal interpretation, and I'm not sure I see 

iuestions of fact that a hearing would, would really be the 
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most effective venue for pursuing. 

On Issue 2, I think that it is actually in my mind 

fairly narrow. I do see the rule as being, again, an 

additional refinement and implementation of the statute, not a 

broadening. I know in my mind when I voted for the rule I did 

not see it at all as a broadening. 

And then I'm looking for Issue 3, which is a close 

the docket. So, Mr. Chairman, if we're at the appropriate 

time, realizing that we have had full and thorough discussion, 

I would make a motion in support of the staff recommendation on 

Issues 1, 2 and 3 ,  and, again, with the recognition that we 

w i l l  have future items on this, on related issues over the next 

few years, and I look forward to participating in those. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner McMurrian. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. If it's the 

appropriate time as well, I would second that motion. 

I just want to say, I know Commissioner Argenziano 

feels that it ties our hands, and I disagree with that because 

I believe that - -  and I think we got some consensus about that. 

1 think there was some confusion as to what was stated here 

Jersus how it was stated exactly in there, but I think FPL has 

represented to us today that the way staff has worded it here 

is correct with the way they see the issue as well. And so I 

zhink if we issue this order consistent with this staff 
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recommendation, that I believe that we will be in the nuclear 

cost recovery clause looking at not only the amounts and 

whether they're prudent, but they have to show that it is 

indeed a long-lead item and that there are advance payments. 

believe they have to make those showings in order for those 

dollars to attach to anything or else they would have to come 

I 

get some other declaratory statement about whatever else it is 

that they're looking for. That's my opinion anyway. So I 

don't know if I've changed the spirit of the motion or not, but 

that's the way I see it. I just wanted to be clear about that. 

But I definitely second the motion and believe this is 

consistent with the statute and the rule law. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: We've got a motion and a second. 

Commissioners, we are in debate. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Excuse me. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop - -  I'll come back 

to you. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop, you're 

recognized. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And I also support the motion 

with just the knowledge I think that Commissioner McMurrian 

pointed out that there may be a need for separate declaratory 

statements at a future time. And to me - -  I ' m  not exactly sure 

if the, if the declaratory statement has proper language. It 
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is on a case-by-case basis. I think it's implied in this that 

they couldn't propose it and then we would just reject it at 

the appropriate time instead of having to go through a 

declaratory statement process. I just wanted to add that. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner Argenziano, you're recognized. We're in 

debate. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 

think the debate is a healthy one. I think it's great to bring 

out everybody's points. And, of course, we all are independent 

and have our own opinions. I think Commissioner Skop brought 

out some very good points, some things that I'd like to 

address; however, not this way. And I, with all due respect, 

iuas in the Legislature when we were creating policy for years 

to come, and sat with my colleagues and I know what the intent 

&as, and I know it was to try to help us get to where we need 

to be to build those nuclear plants, which I am in favor of, 

but not to add in a whole bunch of other stuff that I think 

this rule does expand the statute. So I respectfully disagree, 

2nd down the road I think we're going to find that to be true. 

And I have to commend our three consumer advocates as 

Me11 as the company because the company has tried, I think, 

Jery hard, except we're maybe missing the point or I'm missing 

:he point to them what I would like to see to move forward, and 

l want to move forward with the nuclear power plant. But I 
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think that you've been right on target with what I know as a 

policymaker was supposed to be what the statute was about, the 

statute was about. And I'm really sorry that we are not having 

a public hearing because it's never, never a good thing to, 

to - -  and I say this with due respect. I'm not, not putting 

down my, my fellow Commissioners. They have a right to their 

own opinion. But it's not a good thing when the people have to 

foot the bill to be able to turn down their representatives and 

having a hearing that may bring out better information to even 

help those consumers out there to understand why we need to 

move forward with certain things and get these nuclear power 

plants built and get more energy demand online. 

But saying that, I want to thank everybody for their 

2pinions. But I do, do regret that we are not having a hearing 

2nd I do regret that I think that we have tied our hands in the 

future. So hopefully we can work through some of this as we 

nove along. But I want to commend you because I think your 

?oints were on target. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioners, we're in debate. 

lny further debate? Any further debate? 

Commissioners, we have a motion and a second to 

iccept staff's recommendations on Item 5 and the issues 

2ertaining thereunto. All those in favor, let it be known by 

;he sign of aye. Aye. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Aye. 
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COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: All those opposed, like sign. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Show it done. 

(Agenda Item 5 concluded.) 

* * * * *  
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STATE OF FLORIDA ) 

COUNTY OF LEON ) 

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTERS 

WE, JANE FAUROT, RPR, and LINDA BOLES, RPR, CRR, 
3fficial Commission Reporters, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing proceeding was heard at the time and place herein 
stated. 

IT IS FURTHER CERTIFIED that we stenographically 
reported the said proceedings; that the same has been 
transcribed under our direct supervision; and that this 
transcript constitutes a true transcription of our notes of 
said proceedings. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that we are not a relative, 
Zmployee, attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor are we 
2 relative or employee of any of the parties' attorneys or 
Zounsel connected with the action, nor are we financially 
interested in the action. 

DATED THIS 16th day of April, 2008 

Commission 

(850) 413-6732 

FPSC Official Commission 
Reporter 

(850) 413-6734 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



Statutes &Constitution :View Statutes :->2007->Ch0366->Section 93 ... 
L - 

The 2007 Florida Statutes 

Title XXVll Chapter 366 View Entire Chapter 
RAILROADS AND OTHER REGULATED UTILITIES PUBLIC UTILITIES 

366.93 Cost recovery for the siting, design, licensing, and construction of nuclear and integrated gasification combined 

cycle power plants.-- 

(1) As used in this section. the term: 

(a) "Cost" includes, but is not limited to, ail capital investments, including rate of return, any applicable taxes, and all expenses, 

including Operation and maintenance expenses, related to or resulting from the siting, iicenslng, design, COnStrUCtion, or operation of 

the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 

(b) "Electric utility" or "utility" has the same meaning as that provided in s. 366.8255(1)(a), 

(c) "Integrated gasification combined cycle power plant" or "plant" is an electrical power plant as defined in 5. m ( l 3 )  that 

uses synthesis gas produced by integrated gasification technology. 

(d) "Nuclear power plant" or "plant" is an  electrical power plant as denned in 5. m ( 1 3 )  that uses nuclear materials for fuel 

(e) "Power Piant" or "plant" means a nuclear power piant or an integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 

I 

(f) "Preconstruction" is that period of time after a site has been seiected through and including the date the utility completes site 

clearing work. Preconstruction costs shaii be afforded deferred accounting treatment and shall accrue a carrying charge equal to the 

Utility's aliowance for funds during Construction (AFUDC) rate until recovered in rates. 

(2) Within 6 months after the enactment of this act, the commission shall establish, by rille, alternative cost recovery mechanisms 

for the recovery of costs incurred in the siting, design, licensing, and construction of a nuclear or integrated gasification combined 

cycle Power plant. Such mechanisms shall be designed to promote utility investment in nuclear or integrated gasification combined 

cycle Power Plants and allow for the recovery in rates of all prudently incurred costs, and shaii include, but are not limited to: 

(a) Recovery through the capacity cost recovery clause of any preconstruction costs. 

(b) Recovery through an incremental increase in the utility's capacity cost recovery clause rates of the carrying costs on the utility's 

projected construction cost balance associated with the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. To encourage 

investment and provide certainty, for nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant need petitions Submitted on or 

before December 31, 2010, associated carrying costs shall be equal to the pretax AFUDC in effect upon this act becoming law. For 

nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plants for which need petitions are submitted after December 31, 2010, the 

utility's existing pretax AFUDC rate is presumed to be appropriate unless determined otherwise by the commission in the 

determination of need for the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 

(3)  After a Petition for determination of need is granted, a utility may petition the commission for cost recovery as permitted by this 

section and commission rules. 
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(4) When the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant is placed in commercial service, the utiiity shall be 

allowed to increase its base rate charges by the projected annual revenue requirements of the nuclear or integrated gasification 

combined cycle power plant based on the jurisdictional annual revenue requirements of the plant for the first 12 months of operation. 

The rate of return on capital investments shall be calculated using the Utility's rate of return last approved by the commission prior to 

the Commercial inservice date of the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycie power plant. I f  any existing generating plant is 

retired as a result of operation of the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant, the commission shall allow for 

the recovery, through an increase in base rate charges, of the net book value of the retired plant over a period not to exceed 5 

years. 

(5) The utility shall report to the commission annually the budgeted and actual COS& as compared to the estimated insewice cost of 

the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power piant provided by the utiiity pursuant to s. -(4), until the 

Commercial operation of the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. The utility shall provide such information 

on an annual basis following the final order by the commission approving the determination of need for the nuclear or integrated 

gasification combined cycle power plant, with the understanding that some costs may be higher than estimated and other costs may 

be lower. 

( 6 )  In  the event the utility elects not to complete or is preciuded from completing construction of the nuclear or integrated 

gasification combined cycie power plant, the utility shall be allowed to recover all prudent preconsbuction and construction costs 

incurred following the commission's issuance of a final order granting a determination of need for the nuclear or integrated 

gasification combined cycie power plant. The utility shall recover such costs through the capacity cost recovery clause over a period 

equal to the period during which the costs were incurred or 5 years, whichever is greater. The unrecovered balance during the 

recovew period will accrue interest at the utility's weighted average cost of capital a5 reported in the commission's earnings 

surveillance reporting requirement for the prior year. 

HiStOlY.--S. 44. ch. 2006-230; 5 .  54. ch. 2007-5; 5.  1, Ch. 2007-117. 
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How a Nuclear Power Plant Works 

How a Nuclear Power Plant Works 

Nuclear power plants run on uranium fuel. In the reactor, uranium atoms are split 
through a process known as fission. When atoms are spilt, they produce a large 
amount of energy that is then converted to heat. The heat boils water, creating 
steam that is used to turn turbines, which spins the shaft of a generator. Inside the 
generator, coils of wire spin in a magnetic field and electricity is produced. 

Nuclear power plants in the United States use two types of reactors to achieve this 
process: boiling water reactors and pressurized water reactors. 

Pressurized Water Reactors (PWR) keep water under pressure, so the water heats 
but does not boil. The heated pressurized water is run through pipes, which heat a 
separate water line to create steam. The water to generate steam is never mixed 
with the pressurized water used to heat it. 

The Pressurized Water Reactor (PWR) 

/-- 

Boiling Water Reactors (BWR) heat water by generating heat from fission in the 
reactor vessel to boil water and create steam, which turns the generator. In both 
types of plants, the steam is turned back into water and can be used again in the 
process. 

Boiling Water Reactor (BWR) 
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25-6.0423 Nuclear or  Integrated Gasification Combined Cycle Power Plant Cost Recovery. 
(1)  Purpose. The purpose of this rule is to establish alternative cost recovery mechanisms for the recovery of costs incurred in 

the siting, design, licensing, and construction of nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plants in order to promote 
electric utility investment in nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plants and allow for the recovery in rates of all 
such prudently incurred costs. 

(2) Definitions. As used in this rule, the following definitions shall apply: 
(a) “Nuclear power plant” is an electrical power plant that utilizes nuclear materials as fuel, as defined in Sections 403.503(13) 

(b) “Integrated gasification combined cycle power plant” is an electrical power plant that uses synthesis gas produced by 

(c) “Power plant” or “plant” means a nuclear power plant or an integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 
(d) “Cost” includes, but is not limited to, all capital investments including rate of return, any applicable taxes and all expenses, 

including operation and maintenance expenses, related to or resulting from the siting, licensing, design, construction, or operation of 
the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant as defined in Section 366.93( I)(a), F.S. 

(e) “Site selection.” A site will be deemed to be selected upon the filing of a petition for a determination of need for a nuclear or 
integrated gasification combined cycle power plant pursuant to Section 403.5 19, F.S. 

(0 “Site selection costs” are costs that are expended prior to the selection of a site. 
(g) “Pre-construction costs” are costs that are expended after a site has been selected in preparation for the construction of a 

nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant, incurred up to and including the date the utility completes site clearing 
work. 

(h) Site selection costs and pre-construction costs include, but are not limited to: any and all costs associated with preparing, 
reviewing and defending a Combined Operating License (COL) application for a nuclear power plant; costs associated with site and 
technology selection; costs of engineering, designing, and permitting the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power 
plant; costs of clearing, grading, and excavation; and costs of on-site construction facilities (i,e., construction oftices, warehouses, 
etc.). 

(i) “Construction costs” are costs that are expended to construct the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power 
plant including, but not limited to, the costs of constructing power plant buildings and all associated permanent structures, equipment 
and systems. 

(3) Deferred Accounting Treatment. Site selection and pre-construction costs shall be afforded deferred accounting treatment 
and shall, except for projected costs recovered on a projected basis in one annual cycle, accrue a carrying charge equal to the utility’s 
allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) rate until recovered in rates. 

(4) Site Selection Costs. After the Commission has issued a final order granting a determination of need for a power plant 
pursuant to Section 403.519, F.S., a utility may file a petition for a separate proceeding, to recover prudently incurred site selection 
costs. This separate proceeding will be limited to only those issues necessary for the determination of prudence and alternative 
method for recovery of site selection costs of a power plant. 

( 5 )  Pre-Construction Costs and Carrying Costs on Consmction Cost Balance. After the Commission has issued a final order 
granting a determination of need for a power plant pursuant to Section 403.519, F.S., a utility may petition the Commission for 
recovery of pre-construction costs and carrying costs of construction cost balance as follows: 

(a) Pre-Construction Costs. A utility is entitled to recover, through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause, its actual and projected 
pre-construction costs. The utility may also recover the related carrying charge for those costs not recovered on a projected basis. 
Such costs will be recovered within I year, unless the Commission approves a longer recovery period. Any party may, however, 
propose a longer period of recovery, not to exceed 2 years. 

1.  Actual pre-construction costs incurred by a utility prior to the issuance of a final order granting a determination of need 
pursuant to Section 403.519, F.S., shall be included in the initial filing made by a utility under this subsection for review, approval, 
and a finding with respect to prudence. 

2. The Commission shall include pre-construction costs determined to be reasonable and prudent in setting the factor in the 
annual Capacity Cost Recovery Clause proceedings, as specified in subparagraph (5)(c)3. of this rule. Such costs shall not be subject 
to disallowance or further prudence review. 

(h) Carrying Costs on Construction Cost Balance. A utility is entitled to recover, through the utility’s Capacity Cost Recovery 
Clause, the carrying costs on the utility’s annual projected construction cost balance associated with the power plant. The actual 

and 366.93(1)(c), F.S. 

integrated gasification technology, as defined in Sections 403.503(13) and 366.93( I)(c), F.S. 



carrying costs recovered through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause shall reduce the allowance for funds used during construction 
(AFUDC) that would otherwise have been recorded as a cost of construction eligible for future recovery as plant in service. 

1. For power plant need petitions submitted on or before December 31, 2010, the associated carrying costs shall be computed 
based on the pretax AFUDC rate in effect on June 12,2007; 

2. For power plant need petitions submitted after December 3 I ,  2010, the utility’s pretax AFUDC rate in effect at the time the 
petition for determination of need is filed is presumed to be appropriate unless the Commission determines otherwise in its need 
determination order; 

3. The Commission shall include carrying costs on the balance of construction costs determined to he reasonable or prudent in 
setting the factor in the annual Capacity Cost Recovery Clause proceedings, as specified in paragraph (5)(c) ofthis rule. 

( c )  Capacity Cost Recovery Clause for Nuclear or Integrated Gasification Combined Cycle Power Plant Costs. 
I .  Each year, a utility shall submit, for Commission review and approval, as part of its Capacity Cost Recovery Clause filings: 
a. True-Up for Previous Years. By March I ,  a utility shall submit its final true-up of pre-construction expenditures, based on 

actual preconstruction expenditures for the prior year and previously filed expenditures for such prior year and a description of the 
pre-construction work actually performed during such year; or, once construction begins, its final true-up of carrying costs on its 
construction expenditures, based on actual carrying costs on construction expenditures for the prior year and previously filed 
carrying costs on construction expenditures for such prior year and a description of the construction work actually performed during 
such year. 

b. True-Up and Projections for Current Year, By May I ,  a utility shall submit for Commission review and approval its 
actualiestimated true-up of projected pre-construction expenditures based on a comparison of current year actuallestimated 
expenditures and the previously-filed estimated expenditures for such current year and a description of the pre-construction work 
projected to be performed during such year; or, once construction begins, its actualiestimated true-up of projected carrying costs on 
construction expenditures based on a comparison of current year actualiestimated carrying costs on construction expenditures and the 
previously filed estimated carrying costs on construction expenditures for such current year and a description of the construction 
work projected to be performed during such year. 

c. Projected Costs for Subsequent Years. By May 1, a utility shall submit, for Commission review and approval, its projected 
pre-construction expenditures for the subsequent year and a description of the pre-construction work projected to be performed 
during such year; or. once construction begins, its projected construction expenditures for the subsequent year and a description of 
the construction work projected to be performed during such year. 

2. The Commission shall, prior to October I of each year, conduct a hearing and determine the reasonableness of projected pre- 
construction expenditures and the prudence of actual pre-construction expenditures expended by the utility; or, once construction 
begins, to determine the reasonableness of projected construction expenditures and the prudence of actual construction expenditures 
expended by the utility, and the associated carrying costs. Within I 5  days of the Commission’s vote, the Commission shall enter its 
order. Annually, the Commission shall make a prudence determination of the prior year’s actual construction costs and associated 
carrying costs. To facilitate this determination, the Commission shall conduct an on-going auditing and monitoring program of 
construction costs and related contracts pursuant to Section 366.08, F.S. In making its determination of reasonableness and prudence 
the Commission shall apply the standard provided pursuant to Section 403.5 19(4)(e), F.S. 

3. The Commission shall include those costs it determines, pursuant to this subsection, to be reasonable or prudent in setting the 
Capacity Cost Recovery Clause factor in the annual Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery proceedings. Such prior year actual 
Costs associated with power plant construction subject to the annual proceeding shall not be subject to disallowance or further 
prudence review. 

4. The final true-up for the previous year, actuallestimated true-up for the current year, and subsequent year’s projected power 
plant costs as approved by the Commission pursuant to subparagraph (5)(c)2. will he included for cost recovery purposes as a 
component of the following year’s capacity cost recovery factor in the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery. The utility must 
file all necessary revisions to the fuel and purchased power cost recovery filings no later than October 15 of the current year. 

5 .  By May I of each year, along with the filings required by this paragraph, a utility shall submit for Commission review and 
approval a detailed analysis of the long-term feasibility of completing the power plant. 

(6)  Failure to Enter Commercial Service. Following the Commission’s issuance of a final order granting a determination of need 
for the power plant, in the event the utility elects not to complete or is precluded from completing construction of the power plant, 
the utility shall be allowed to recover all prudent site selection costs, pre-construction costs, and construction costs. 

(a) The utility shall recover such costs through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause over a period equal to the period during 



which the costs were incurred or 5 years, whichever is greater. 
(b) The amount recovered under this subsection will be the remaining unrecovered Construction Work in Progress (CWIp) 

balance at the time of abandonment and future payment of all outstanding costs and any other prudent and reasonable exit costs. The 
unrecovered balance during the recovery period will accrue interest at the utility’s overall pretax weighted average midpoint COSt of 
capital on a Commission adjusted basis as reported by the utility in its Earnings Surveillance Report filed in December ofthe Prior 
year, utilizing the midpoint of retum on equity (ROE) range or ROE approved for other regulatory purposes, as applicable. 

(7) Commercial Service. As operating units or systems associated with the power plant and the power plant itself are placed in 
commercial service: 

(a) The utility shall file a petition for Commission approval of the base rate increase pursuant to Section 366.93(4), F.S., 
separate from any cost recovery clause petitions, that includes any and all costs reflected in such increase, whether or not those costs 
have been previously reviewed by the Commission; provided, however, that any actual costs previously reviewed and determined to 
he prudent in the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause shall not be subject to disallowance or hrther prudence review except for fraud, 
perjury. or intentional withholding of key information. 

(b)  The utility shall calculate the increase in base rates resulting from the jurisdictional annual base revenue requirements for the 
power plant in conjunction with the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause projection filing for the year the power plant is projected to 
achieve commercial operation. The increase in base rates will he based on the annualized base revenue requirements for the power 
plant for the first 12 months of operations consistent with the cost projections filed in conjunction with the Capacity Cost Recovery 
Clause projection filing. 

(c) At such time as the power plant is included in base rates, recovery through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause will cease, 
except for the difference between actual and projected construction costs as provided in subparagraph (5)(c)4. above. 

(d) The rate of return on capital investments shall be calculated using the utility’s most recent actual Commission adjusted basis 
overall weighted average rate of return as reported by the utility in its most recent Earnings Surveillance Report prior to the tiling of 
a petition as provided in paragraph (7)(a). The return on equity cost rate used shall be the midpoint ofthe last Commission approved 
range for return on equity or the last Commission approved retum on equity cost rate established for use for all other regulatoly 
purposes, as appropriate. 

(e) The jurisdictional net book value of any existing generating plant that is retired as a result of operation of the power plant 
shall be recovered through an increase in base rate charges over a period not to exceed 5 years. At the end of the recovery period, 
base rates shall he reduced by an amount equal to the increase associated with the recovery of the retiredgenerating plant. 

(8) A utility shall, contemporaneously with the filings required by paragraph (S)(c) above, file a detailed statement of project 
costs sufficient to support a Commission determination of prudence, including, but not limited to, the information required in 
paragraphs (8)(b) - @)(e), below. 

(a) Subject to suitable confidentiality agreements or, to the extent necessary, protective orders issued by the Commission, a 
utility will ensure reasonably contemporaneous access, which may include access by electronic means, for review by parties of all 
documents relied on by utility management to approve expenditures for which cost recovery is sought. Access to any information that 
is “Safeguards Information” as defined in 42 U.S.C. 2167 and 10 C.F.R. 73.21, incorporated by reference into this Rule, shall only 
be in accordance with applicable Nuclear Regulatory Commission requirements. 

(b) Regarding technology selected, a utility shall provide a description of the technology selected that includes, but is not limited 
to, a review of the technology and the factors leading to its selection. 

(c) The annual true-up and projection cost filings shall include a list of contracts executed in excess of $1 million to include the 
nature and scope of the work, the dollar value and term of the contract, the method of vendor selection, the identity and affiliation of 
the vendor, and current status of the contract. 

(d) Final true-up filings and actualiestimated true-up filings will include monthly expenditures incurred during those periods for 
major tasks performed within Site Selection, Preconstruction and Construction categories. A utility shall provide annual variance 
explanations comparing the current and prior period to the most recent projections for those periods filed with the Commission. 

(e) Projection filings will include monthly expenditures for major tasks performed within Site Selection, Preconstruction and 
Construction categories. 

(0 AMud Reports Required by Rule 25-6.135, F.A.C. On an annual basis following issuance of the final order granting a 
determination of need and until commercial operation of the power plant, a utility shall include the budgeted and actual costs as 
compared to the estimated in-service costs of the power plant as provided in the petition for need detemination in its annual report 
filed pursuant to Rule 25-6.135, F.A.C. The estimates provided in the petition for need determination are non-binding estimates. 



. 

Some costs may be higher than estimated and other costs may be lower. A utility shall provide such revised estimated in-service costs 
as may be necessary in its annual report 
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The 2007 Florida Statutes 

Title XXVll Chapter 366 View Entire Chapter 
RAILROADS AND OTHER REGULATED UTILITIES PUBLIC UTILITIES 

366.93 Cost recovery for the siting, design. licensing, and construction of nuclear and integrated gasification combined 

cycle power plants.-- 

(1) As used In this section. the term: 

( a )  "COSY includes, but IS not limited to, ali capital investments, including rate of return, any applicable taxes, and all expenses, 

inciuding Operation and maintenance expenses, related to or resulting from the siting, licensing, design, constwction. or operation of 

the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 

(b) "Eiectric Util i ty" or "utility" has the same meaning as that provided ~n 5. 366.8255(1)(a). 

(c) "Integrated gasification combined cycle power plant" or"piant" is an electrical power plant as deftned in 5 .  B ( 1 3 )  that 

uses synthesis 985 produced by integrated gasification technology. 

(d) "Nuclear power plant" or "plant" is an eiectricai power piant as defined in s. B ( 1 3 )  that uses nuclear materials for fuel. 

(e) "Power plant" or "plant" means a nuclear power plant or an integrated QaSifiCatiOn combined cycie power plant 

(f) "Pieconstruction" is that period of time after a site has been selected through and including the date the Utility completes site 

clearing work. Preconstruction costs shail be afforded deferred accounting treatment and shall accrue a carrying charge equal to the 

Utility's allowance for funds during construction (AFUDC) rate until recovered in rates. 

(2) Within 6 months after the enactment of this act, the commission shall establish, by rule, alternative cost recovery mechanisms 

for the recovery of costs incurred in the siting, design, licensing, and COnStwdion of a nuclear or integrated gasification combined 

cycie power plant. Such mechanisms shall be designed to promote Utility investment in nuclear or integrated gasification combined 

cycle power piants and ailow for the recovery in rates of all prudentiy incurred costs, and shali include, but are not iimited to: 

(a) Recovery through the capacity cost recovery clause of any preconstruction costs 

(b) Recovery through an incremental increase in the utility's capacity cost recovery clause rates Of the carrying costs On the utility's 

projected construction cost balance associated with the nuclear or Integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. To encourage 

investment and provide certainty, far nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycie power piant need petitions Submitted an or 

before December 31, 2010, associated carrying costs shall be equal to the pretax AFUDC in effect upon this act becoming law. For 

nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycie power plants for which need petitions are submitted after December 31, 2010, the 

Utility's existing pretax AFUDC rate is presumed to be appropriate unless determined Othewise by the commission in the 

determination of need for the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 

(3) After a petition for determination of need is granted, a utility may petition the commission for cost recovery as permitted by this 

section and commission rules. 
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(4) When the nutiear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant is placed in commercial service, the utility shall be 

allowed to increase its base rate charges by the projected annual revenue requirements of the nuclear or integrated gasification 

combined cycle power plant based on the jurisdictional annual revenue requirements of the plant for the first 12 months of operation. 

The rate of return on capital investments shall be calculated using the utility's rate of return last approved by the commission Prior to 

the commercial inservice date of the nuciear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. If any existing generating piant is 

retired as a result of operation of the nucieai or integrated gasification combined cycle power piant, the Commission shall aiiow for 

the recovery, through an increase in base rate charges, of the net book vaiue of the retired plant over a period not to exceed 5 

year% 

(5) The utility shali report to the commission annually the budgeted and actual cost5 as compared to the estimated inservice cost of 

the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power piant provided by the utility pursuant to 5 .  -(4), until the 

Commerciai Operation of the nuciear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. The utility shall provide such information 

on an annual basis following the flnal order by the commission approving the determination of need for the nuclear or integrated 

gasification combined cycle power piant, with the understanding that some costs may be higher than estimated and other costs may 

be lower. 

( 6 )  In the event the utility eieds not to complete or is precluded from completing construction of the nudear or integrated 

gasification comb'ned cycle power plant, the utility shail be allowed to recover aii prudent preconstruction and COnStrUCtion costs 

incurred following the commiss10n's issuance of a final order granting a determination of need for the nuclear or integrated 

gasification combined cycie power plant. The utility shall recover such costs through the capacity cost recovery clause over a period 

equal to the period during which the costs were incurred or 5 years, whichever 1s greater. The unrecovered balance during the 

recovery period wili accrue interest a t  the utility's weighted average cost of capitai as reported in the commission's earnings 

surveiilance reporting requirement for the prior year. 

History.--s. 44, rh. 2006-230; 5.  54, Ch. 2007-5; I .  1. ch. 2007~117. 
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How a Nuclear Power Plant Works 

How a Nuclear Power Plant Works 

Nuclear power plants run on uranium fuel. In the reactor, uranium atoms are split 
through a process known as fission. When atoms are spilt, they produce a large 
amount of energy that is then converted to heat. The heat boils water, creating 
steam that is used to turn turbines, which spins the shaft of a generator. Inside the 
generator, coils of wire spin in a magnetic field and electricity is produced. 

Nuclear power plants in the United States use two types of reactors to achieve this 
process: boiling water reactors and pressurized water reactors. 

Pressurized Water Reactors (PWR) keep water under pressure, so the water heats 
but does not boil. The heated pressurized water is run through pipes, which heat a 
separate water line to create steam. The water to generate steam is never mixed 
with the pressurized water used to heat it. 

The Pressurized Water Reactor (PWR) 

Boiling Water Reactors (BWR) heat water by generating heat from fission in the 
reactor vessel to boil water and create steam, which turns the generator. In both 
types of plants, the steam is turned back into water and can be used again in the 
process. 

Boiling Water Reactor (BWR) 
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25-6.0423 Nuclear or Integrated Gasification Combined Cycle Power Plant Cost Recovery. 
( I )  Purpose. The purpose of this rule is to establish alternative cost recovery mechanisms for the recovery of costs incurred in 

the siting, design, licensing, and construction of nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plants in order to promote 
electric utility investment in nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plants and allow for the recovery in rates of all 
such prudently incurred costs. 

(2) Definitions. As used in this rule, the following definitions shall apply: 
(a) “Nuclear power plant” is an electrical power plant that utilizes nuclear materials as fuel, as defined in Sections 403.503(13) 

(h) “Integrated gasification combined cycle power plant” is an electrical power plant that uses synthesis gas produced by 

(c) “Power plant” or “plant” means a nuclear power plant or an integrated gasification combined cycle power plant. 
(d) “Cost” includes, but is not limited to, all capital investments including rate of return, any applicable taxes and all expenses, 

including operation and maintenance expenses, related to or resulting from the siting, licensing, design, construction, or operation of 
the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant as defined in Section 366.93( I)(a), F.S. 

(e) “Site selection.” A site will be deemed to be selected upon the filing of a petition for a determination of need for a nuclear or 
integrated gasification combined cycle power plant pursuant to Section 403.5 19, F.S. 

( f )  “Site selection costs” are costs that are expended prior to the selection of a site. 
(g) “Pre-construction costs” are costs that are expended after a site has been selected in preparation for the construction of a 

nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power plant, incurred up to and including the date the utility completes site clearing 
work. 

(h) Site selection costs and pre-construction costs include, but are not limited to: any and all costs associated with preparing, 
reviewing and defending a Combined Operating License (COL) application for a nuclear power plant; costs associated with site and 
technology selection; costs of engineering, designing, and permitting the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power 
plant; costs of clearing, grading, and excavation; and costs of on-site construction facilities (i.e., construction offices, warehouses, 
etc.). 

(i) “Construction costs” are costs that are expended to construct the nuclear or integrated gasification combined cycle power 
plant including, but not limited to, the costs of constructing power plant buildings and all associated permanent structures, equipment 
and systems. 

(3) Deferred Accounting Treatment. Site selection and pre-construction costs shall be afforded deferred accounting treatment 
and shall, except for projected costs recovered on a projected basis in one annual cycle, accrue a carrying charge equal to the utility’s 
allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) rate until recovered in rates. 

(4) Site Selection Costs. After the Commission has issued a final order granting a determination of need for a power plant 
pursuant to Section 403.5 19, F.S., a utility may file a petition for a separate proceeding, to recover prudently incurred site selection 
costs. This separate proceeding will be limited to only those issues necessary for the determination of prudence and alternative 
method for recovery of site selection costs of a power plant. 

(5) Pre-Construction Costs and Carrying Costs on Construction Cost Balance. After the Commission has issued a final order 
granting a determination of need for a power plant pursuant to Section 403.519, F.S., a utility may petition the Commission for 
recovery of pre-construction costs and carrying costs of construction cost balance as follows: 

(a) Pre-Construction Costs. A utility is entitled to recover, through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause, its actual and projected 
pre-construction costs. The utility may also recover the related canying charge for those costs not recovered on a projected basis. 
Such costs will be recovered within 1 year, unless the Commission approves a longer recovery period. Any party may, however, 
propose a longer period of recovery, not to exceed 2 years. 

1. Actual pre-construction costs incurred by a utility prior to the issuance of a final order granting a determination of need 
pursuant to Section 403.519, F.S., shall be included in the initial filing made by a utility under this subsection for review, approval, 
and a finding with respect to prudence. 

2. The Commission shall include pre-construction costs determined to be reasonable and prudent in setting the factor in the 
annual Capacity Cost Recovery Clause proceedings, as specified in subparagraph (5)(c)3. ofthis rule. Such costs shall not he subject 
to disallowance or further prudence review. 

(b) Carrying Costs on Construction Cost Balance. A utility is entitled to recover, through the utility’s Capacity Cost Recovery 
Clause, the canying costs on the utility’s annual projected construction cost balance associated with the power plant. The actual 

and 366.93(1)(c), F.S. 

integrated gasification technology, as defined in Sections 403.503(13) and 366.93(1)(c), F.S. 



carrying costs recovered through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause shall reduce the allowance for funds used during construction 
(AFUDC) that would otherwise have been recorded as a cost of construction eligible for future recovery as plant in service. 

I .  For power plant need petitions submitted on or before December 31, 2010, the associated carrying costs shall be computed 
based on the pretax AFUDC rate in effect on June 12,2007; 

2. For power plant need petitions submitted after December 31, 2010, the utility’s pretax AFUDC rate in effect at the time the 
petition for determination of need is filed is presumed to be appropriate unless the Commission determines otherwise in its need 
determination order; 

3. The Commission shall include carrying costs on the balance of construction costs determined to he reasonable or prudent in 
setting the factor in the annual Capacity Cost Recovery Clause proceedings, as specified in paragraph (5)(c) ofthis rule. 

(c) Capacity Cost Recovery Clause for Nuclear or Integrated Gasification Combined Cycle Power Plant Costs. 
1 .  Each year, a utility shall submit, for Commission review and approval, as part of its Capacity Cost Recovery Clause filings: 
a. True-Up for Previous Years. By March I ,  a utility shall submit its tinal true-up of pre-construction expenditures, based on 

actual preconstruction expenditures for the prior year and previously tiled expenditures for such prior year and a description of the 
pre-construction work actually performed during such year; or, once construction begins, its final true-up of carrying costs on its 
Construction expenditures, based on actual carrying costs on construction expenditures for the prior year and previously filed 
carrying costs on construction expenditures for such prior year and a description of the construction work actually performed during 
such year. 

b. True-Up and Projections for Current Year. By May 1, a utility shall submit for Commission review and approval its 
actualiestimated true-up of projected pre-construction expenditures based on a comparison of current year actualiestimated 
expenditures and the previously-tiled estimated expenditures for such current year and a description of the pre-construction work 
projected to be performed during such year; or, once construction begins, its actuallestimated true-up of projected carrying costs on 
construction expenditures based on a comparison of current year actuallestimated carrying costs on construction expenditures and the 
previously filed estimated carrying costs on construction expenditures for such current year and a description of the construction 
work projected to be performed during such year. 

c. Projected Costs for Subsequent Years. By May 1, a utility shall submit, for Commission review and approval, its projected 
pre-construction expenditures for the subsequent year and a description of the pre-construction work projected to be performed 
during such year; or, once construction begins, its projected construction expenditures for the subsequent year and a description of 
the construction work projected to be performed during such year. 

2. The Commission shall, prior to October 1 of each year, conduct a hearing and determine the reasonableness of projected pre- 
construction expenditures and the prudence of actual pre-construction expenditures expended by the utility; or, once construction 
begins, to determine the reasonableness of projected construction expenditures and the prudence of actual construction expenditures 
expended by the utility, and the associated carrying costs. Within 15 days of the Commission’s vote, the Commission shall enter its 
order. Annually, the Commission shall make a prudence determination of the prior year’s actual construction costs and associated 
carrying costs. To facilitate this determination, the Commission shall conduct an on-going auditing and monitoring program of 
construction costs and related contracts pursuant to Section 366.08, F.S. In making its determination of reasonableness and prudence 
the Commission shall apply the standard provided pursuant to Section 403.519(4)(e), F.S. 

3. The Commission shall include those costs it determines, pursuant to this subsection, to be reasonable or prudent in setting the 
Capacity Cost Recovery Clause factor in the annual Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery proceedings. Such prior year actual 
costs associated with power plant construction subject to the annual proceeding shall not be subject to disallowance or further 
prudence review. 

4. The final true-up for the previous year, actualiestimated true-up for the current year, and subsequent year’s projected power 
plant costs as approved by the Commission pursuant to subparagraph (5)(c)2. will be included for cost recovery purposes as a 
component of the following year’s capacity cost recovery factor in the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery. The utility must 
tile all necessary revisions to the fuel and purchased power cost recovery filings no later than October 15 of the current year. 

5. By May 1 of each year, along with the filings required by this paragraph, a utility shall submit for Commission review and 
approval a detailed analysis of the long-term feasibility of completing the power plant. 

(6) Failure to Enter Commercial Service. Following the Commission’s issuance of a final order granting a determination of need 
for the power plant, in the event the utility elects not to complete or is precluded fiom completing construction of the power plant, 
the utility shall be allowed to recover all prudent site selection costs, pre-construction costs, and construction costs. 

(a) The utility shall recover such costs through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause over a period equal to the period during 



which the costs were incurred or 5 years, whichever is greater. 
(b) The amount recovered under this subsection will be the remaining unrecovered Construction Work in Progress (CWIP) 

balance at the time of abandonment and future payment of all outstanding costs and any other prudent and reasonable exit costs. The 
unrecovered balance during the recovery period will accrue interest at the utility’s overall pretax weighted average midpoint cost of 
capital on a Commission adjusted basis as reported by the utility in its Eamings Surveillance Report filed in December of the prior 
year, utilizing the midpoint of retum on equity (ROE) range or ROE approved for other regulatory purposes, as applicable. 

(7) Commercial Service. As operating units or systems associated with the power plant and the power plant itself are placed in 
commercial service: 

(a) The utility shall file a petition for Commission approval of the base rate increase pursuant to Section 366.93(4), F.S., 
separate from any cost recovery clause petitions, that includes any and all costs reflected in such increase, whether or not those costs 
have been previously reviewed by the Commission; provided, however, that any actual costs previously reviewed and determined to 
be prudent in the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause shall not be subject to disallowance or further prudence review except for fraud, 
perjury, or intentional withholding of key information. 

(b) The utility shall calculate the increase in base rates resulting from the jurisdictional annual base revenue requirements for the 
power plant in conjunction with the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause projection filing for the year the power plant is projected to 
achieve commercial operation. The increase in base rates will be based on the annualized base revenue requirements for the power 
plant for the first 12 months of operations consistent with the cost projections filed in conjunction with the Capacity Cost Recovery 
Clause projection filing. 

(c) At such time as the power plant is included in base rates, recovery through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause will cease, 
except for the difference between actual and projected construction costs as provided in subparagraph (5)(c)4. above. 

(d) The rate of return on capital investments shall be calculated using the utility’s most recent actual Commission adjusted basis 
overall weighted average rate of return as reported by the utility in its most recent Earnings Surveillance Report prior to the filing of 
a petition as provided in paragraph (7)(a). The retum on equity cost rate used shall be the midpoint of the last Commission approved 
range for return on equity or the last Commission approved retum on equity cost rate established for use for all other regulatory 
purposes, as appropriate. 

(e) The jurisdictional net book value of any existing generating plant that is retired as a result of operation of the power plant 
shall be recovered through an increase in base rate charges over a period not to exceed 5 years. At the end of the recovery period, 
base rates shall be reduced by an amount equal to the increase associated with the recovery of the retired generating plant. 

(8) A utility shall, contemporaneously with the filings required by paragraph (S)(c) above, file a detailed statement of project 
costs sufficient to support a Commission determination of prudence, including, but not limited to, the information required in 
paragraphs @)(b) ~ @)(e), below. 

(a) Subject to suitable confidentiality agreements or, to the extent necessary, protective orders issued by the Commission, a 
utility will ensure reasonably contemporaneous access, which may include access by electronic means, for review by parties of all 
documents relied on by utility management to approve expenditures for which cost recovery is sought. Access to any information that 
is “Safeguards Information” as defined in 42 U.S.C. 2167 and IO C.F.R. 73.21, incorporated by reference into this Rule, shall only 
be in accordance with applicable Nuclear Regulatory Commission requirements. 

(b) Regarding technology selected, a utility shall provide a description of the technology selected that includes, but is not limited 
to, a review ofthe technology and the factors leading to its selection. 

(c) The annual true-up and projection cost filings shall include a list of contracts executed in excess of $1 million to include the 
nature and scope of the work, the dollar value and term of the contract, the method of vendor selection, the identity and affiliation of 
the vendor, and current status ofthe contract. 

(d) Final true-up filings and actual/estimated true-up filings will include monthly expenditures incurred during those periods for 
major tasks performed within Site Selection, Preconstruction and Construction categories. A utility shall provide annual variance 
explanations comparing the current and prior period to the most recent projections for those periods filed with the Commission. 

(e) Projection filings will include monthly expenditures for major tasks performed within Site Selection, Preconstruction and 
Construction categories. 

(0 Annual Reports Required by Rule 25-6.135, F.A.C. On an annual basis following issuance of the final order granting a 
determination of need and until commercial operation of the power plant, a utility shall include the budgeted and actual costs as 
compared to the estimated in-service costs of the power plant as provided in the petition for need determination in its annual report 
filed pursuant to Rule 25-6.135, F.A.C. The estimates provided in the petition for need determination are non-binding estimates. 



Some costs may be higher than estimated and other costs may be lower. A utility shall provide such revised estimated in-service costs 
as may be necessaty in its annual report. 
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